

## JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

## Sixty-first Legislative Assembly

\* \* \* \* \*

Bismarck, April 30, 2009

The House convened at 8:00 a.m., with Speaker Monson presiding.

The prayer was offered by Pastor Larry Giese, Lord of Life Lutheran Church, Bismarck.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Bellew, Kempenich, Kingsbury, and Nelson.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

## REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

**SB 2012, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Wardner, Stenehjem, Warner and Reps. Delzer, Carlson, Kaldor) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1474-1479, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2012 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1474-1479 of the Senate Journal and pages 1680-1685 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2012 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide an appropriation to the state treasurer; to provide for budget section reports; to provide for a state disaster relief fund; to create and enact a new section to chapter 24-01 and a new section to chapter 54-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the name of United States highway 85 and transportation funding reports;"; after "sections" insert "24-02-35.2," and after "54-27-19.1" insert ", 57-40.3-10"

Page 1, line 4, after "disasters" insert ", the proceeds from the sale of road materials,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "and" and replace "a transfer" with "transfers; to provide for legislative council studies; to provide an effective date; to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 16, replace "24,194,030" with "20,047,015" and replace "151,520,269" with "147,373,254"

Page 1, line 17, replace "29,107,351" with "14,107,351" and replace "203,805,014" with "188,805,014"

Page 1, line 18, replace "96,855,896" with "113,267,450" and replace "645,576,994" with "661,988,548"

Page 1, line 19, replace "16,653,601" with "14,853,601" and replace "69,066,101" with "67,266,101"

Page 1, line 20, replace "166,810,878" with "162,275,417" and replace "1,069,968,378" with "1,065,432,917"

Page 1, line 21, replace "3.00" with "2.00" and replace "1,055.50" with "1,054.50"

Page 1, replace lines 22 through 24 with:

**"SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION - FEDERAL FISCAL STIMULUS FUNDS - ADDITIONAL FUNDING APPROVAL.** The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated from federal funds made available to the state under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, not otherwise appropriated, to the department of transportation, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011, as follows:

Highway infrastructure	\$170,126,497
Grants to rural transit programs	5,956,174
Total federal funds	\$176,082,671

The department of transportation may seek emergency commission and budget section approval under chapter 54-16 for authority to spend any additional federal funds received under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 in excess of the amounts appropriated under this section, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

Any federal funds appropriated under this section are not a part of the agency's 2011-13 base budget. Any program expenditures made with these funds will not be replaced with state funds after the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 funds are no longer available.

**SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - STATE TREASURER - WEATHER-RELATED COST-SHARING PROGRAM.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury attributable to motor vehicle excise tax collections during the 2007-09 biennium, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$59,900,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state treasurer for the purpose of providing weather-related cost-sharing funds, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2009. The state treasurer shall distribute the funds appropriated under this section before June 30, 2009, as follows:

1. Ten million dollars to townships in accordance with the formula used to distribute funds to townships under section 54-27-19.1, except that organized townships are not required to provide matching funds to receive distributions under this section.
2. Forty-one million four hundred thousand dollars to counties and cities in accordance with the formula used to distribute funds to counties and cities under subsection 2 of section 54-27-19.
3. Seven million five hundred thousand dollars to the state highway fund.
4. One million dollars to the public transportation fund to be distributed in accordance with section 39-04.2-04.

**SECTION 4. State disaster relief fund - Creation - Uses.** There is created in the state treasury a state disaster relief fund. Moneys in the fund are to be used subject to legislative appropriations for providing funding for defraying the expenses of state disasters, including providing funds required to match federal funds for expenses associated with presidential-declared disasters in the state. Any interest or other fund earnings must be deposited in the fund.

**SECTION 5. APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$43,000,000, which the office of management and budget shall transfer to the state disaster relief fund during the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2009.

**SECTION 6. APPROPRIATION - ADJUTANT GENERAL - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the state disaster relief fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$43,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the adjutant general for the purpose of providing emergency relief funding, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011. The adjutant general may use up to \$20,000,000 of the funds appropriated in this section for the purpose of providing emergency snow removal grants to counties, cities, and townships in accordance with section 7 of this Act. The adjutant general may use up to \$23,000,000 of the funds appropriated in this section for paying costs relating to the 2009 flood disaster, snow removal damage to roads, and other disasters in accordance with section 8 of this Act.

**SECTION 7. EMERGENCY SNOW REMOVAL GRANTS - GUIDELINES - BUDGET SECTION REPORT.** A county, township, or city may apply to the department of emergency services for an emergency snow removal grant for reimbursement of up to fifty percent of the costs incurred by the county, township, or city for the period January 2009 through March 2009 that exceeds two hundred percent of the average costs incurred for these months in 2004 through 2008.

Each county, township, or city requesting reimbursement under this section shall submit the request in accordance with rules developed by the department of emergency services. The department of emergency services shall distribute these grants prior to

June 30, 2009, and shall report to the budget section regarding the grants awarded under this section.

**SECTION 8. EMERGENCY DISASTER RELIEF GRANTS - GUIDELINES - BUDGET SECTION REPORT - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL.** A political subdivision receiving federal emergency relief funding relating to disasters occurring from January 2009 through June 2009 may apply to the department of emergency services for an emergency relief grant of up to fifty percent of the local match required to receive the federal emergency relief funding. Each political subdivision requesting reimbursement under this section shall submit the request in accordance with rules developed by the department of emergency services. The department of emergency services may distribute up to \$13,000,000 of grants under this section. Any additional grant expenditures require budget section approval. The department of emergency services shall report to the budget section on grants awarded under this section in the fourth quarter of calendar year 2009 and the third quarter of calendar year 2010. Any funds provided for by the department of emergency services in this section which are not distributed to political subdivisions may be used to match federal disaster relief funds received for state purposes, subject to budget section approval.

**SECTION 9. APPROPRIATION - EXEMPTION.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the state highway fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$7,500,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and out of any moneys in the public transportation fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$1,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of transportation for highway projects and public transportation grants, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2009. Funds appropriated in this section are not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and any unexpended funds may be spent by the department of transportation during the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 10. APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER - STATE HIGHWAY FUND.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$4,600,000, which the office of management and budget shall transfer to the state highway fund for the purpose of defraying the expenses of highway projects in the Devils Lake area, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 11. USE OF HIGHWAY FUNDING - REPORT TO THE BUDGET SECTION.** The department of transportation shall coordinate with the department of emergency services to compile information regarding the use of state, federal, emergency, and other highway funding by the department of transportation, counties, cities, and townships during the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011. The department of transportation shall provide periodic reports to the budget section regarding the use of funds during the 2009-10 interim.

**SECTION 12. HIGHWAY FUNDING - ONE-TIME FUNDING.** Any highway funding received by the state, counties, cities, and townships in excess of the amounts received through distributions from the highway tax distribution fund under section 54-27-19 or existing federal highway aid programs is considered one-time funding for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011."

Page 2, remove lines 1 through 29

Page 3, replace lines 4 through 10 with:

**"SECTION 14.** A new section to chapter 24-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Theodore Roosevelt expressway - United States highway 85.** Notwithstanding any previous designation, the department shall designate United States highway 85 from the South Dakota border to the junction of United States highway 2 and United States highway 2 from the Montana border to the junction of United States highway 85 as the Theodore Roosevelt expressway and at a minimum shall place signs along the highway designating that name and may use any appropriate signs donated to the department.

**SECTION 15. AMENDMENT.** Section 24-02-35.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**24-02-35.2. Deposit of sale proceeds - Continuing appropriation.** The proceeds from any sale of road materials made under section 24-02-35.1 must be deposited in the department of transportation fund. An amount not to exceed the total sum of the sales under section 24-02-35.1, but not to exceed ~~two hundred thousand~~ one million dollars a year, may be withdrawn upon voucher of the department for purchasing road materials. All moneys deposited in the fund pursuant to this section are hereby appropriated to the department for the purposes of this section."

Page 12, after line 17, insert:

**"SECTION 20.** A new section to chapter 54-27 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Report on transportation funding and expenditures.** Each county, city, and township shall provide to the tax commissioner an annual report on funding and expenditures relating to transportation projects and programs. The report must be provided within ninety days after the close of a calendar year. The report must contain by fund the beginning balance, revenues by major source, expenditures by major category, the ending balance, and any other information requested by the tax commissioner.

**SECTION 21. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-40.3-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-40.3-10. (Effective through June 30, 2009 2011) Transfer of revenue.** All moneys collected and received under this chapter after moneys are deposited in the state aid distribution fund under section 57-39.2-26.1 must be transmitted monthly by the director of the department of transportation to the state treasurer to be transferred and credited as follows:

1. ~~Ten~~ Twenty-five percent to the highway fund.
2. ~~Ninety~~ Seventy-five percent to the state general fund.

**(Effective after June 30, 2009 2011) Transfer of revenue.** All moneys collected and received under this chapter must be transmitted monthly by the director of the department of transportation to the state treasurer to be transferred and credited to the general fund."

Page 13, after line 13, insert:

**"SECTION 24. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - FARGO DISTRICT OFFICE SITE.** During the 2009-10 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying the feasibility and desirability of relocating the Fargo district office facility. The study, if conducted, must include a review of the estimated value of the current site property, the best use of the current property, and potential locations for a new district office facility. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-second legislative assembly.

**SECTION 25. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION MATCHING FUNDS.** During the 2009-10 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying the potential options for matching federal highway construction funding. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-second legislative assembly."

Page 13, after line 15, insert:

**"SECTION 27. EMERGENCY.** Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 of this Act are declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

#### **STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98031.0228 FN 3**

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

Engrossed SB 2012 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. DELZER MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2012 as printed on HJ pages 1680-1685 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2012, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2012:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of transportation; to provide an appropriation to the state treasurer; to provide for budget section reports; to provide for a state disaster relief fund; to create and enact a new section to chapter 24-01 and a new section to chapter 54-27 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the name of United States highway 85 and transportation funding reports; to amend and reenact sections 24-02-35.2, 24-02-44, 39-04-19, 54-27-19, 54-27-19.1, 57-40.3-10, 57-43.1-06, and 57-43.2-04.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to authority to borrow for disasters, the proceeds from the sale of road materials, and the collection and distribution of highway funds; to repeal section 39-04.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the registration fee for the public transportation fund; to provide for transfers; to provide for legislative council studies; to provide an effective date; to provide an expiration date; and to declare an emergency.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 91 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froeth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich; Kingsbury

Engrossed SB 2012, as amended, passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

\*\*\*\*\*

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. DAHL MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2267 as printed on HJ page 1674 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2267 was placed on the Fourteenth order.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2267:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 34-11.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to whistleblower protection for public employees; and to provide for a legislative council study.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froeth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Zaiser

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kingsbury

SB 2267 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. UGLEM MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2371 as printed on HJ pages 1674-1676 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2371, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

#### **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2371:** A BILL for an Act to provide for the control of invasive species; to amend and reenact sections 63-01.1-06 and 63-01.1-07.6 of the North Dakota Century Code or in the alternative to amend and reenact section 16 of House Bill No. 1026, as approved by the sixty-first legislative assembly, relating to the distribution of state appropriations for noxious weed control.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Ruby

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Johnson, D.; Kempenich; Kingsbury

Engrossed SB 2371, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. BELTER MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2373 as printed on HJ pages 1638-1639 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2373, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

#### **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2373:** A BILL to provide for a grape and wine program committee; to provide a report to the legislative assembly; to provide an appropriation; and to provide an expiration date.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 72 YEAS, 17 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conrad; DeKrey; Delmore; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Ruby; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Sukut; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Conklin; Dahl; Damschen; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Froelich; Meier, L.; Nathe; Potter; Rust; Skarphol; Svedjan; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Wrangham

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Johnson, D.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Wald

SB 2373, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. DAMSCHEN MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2391 as printed on HJ pages 1706-1707 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2391, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

#### **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2391:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 50-06-26 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the alternatives-to-abortion services program; to provide for reports to the legislative council; and to provide an appropriation.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Johnson, D.; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Wald

SB 2391, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2199.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: SB 2199.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: SB 2002, SB 2006, SB 2016, SB 2017, SB 2097, SB 2195, SB 2201, SB 2230.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2012.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2267, SB 2371, SB 2373, SB 2391.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: SB 2199.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: HB 1011, HB 1017, HB 1035, HB 1151, HB 1295, HB 1304, HB 1425, HB 1436.

#### **MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the House stand in recess until 12:30 p.m., which motion prevailed.

**THE HOUSE RECONVENED** pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Monson presiding.

**CORRECTION AND REVISION OF THE JOURNAL**

**MR. SPEAKER:** Your **Committee on Correction and Revision of the Journal (Rep. Delzer, Chairman)** has carefully examined the Journal of the 68th and 75th Days and recommends that it be corrected as follows and when so corrected, recommends that it be approved:

Page 1507, line 25, replace "Wall" with "Wald"

Page 1701, line 33, after "if" insert "this language is not provided for in the lease or easement, payments at least equal to "

Page 1709, line, replace "1002-1003" with "1696-1697"

**REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED** that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

**POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE**

**REP. R. KELSCH:** Mr. Speaker: I rise on a point of personal privilege.

Representative Porter and I are proud to honor today the Mandan Speech Team and the coaches on their 3-peat State Speech Championship.

Mandan has a long standing history of very strong speech teams. In 2005, the Mandan Speech team won the state championship, in 2006 they were State runner-up and in 2007, 2008 and 2009 they were awarded the state championship titles. These young people have proven that hard work, countless hours of practice and dedication have paid off.

At the 2009 State Tournament, Mandan won 5 out of the 14 events and I will recognize those individual winners:

1. Vanessa Stumpf; Radio Broadcasting
2. Nick Leingang; Extemporaneous Programmed Reading, (EPR),
3. Jonathon Wanner; Poetry,
4. Jonathon Wanner; Dramatic Interpretation and,
5. Zach Wanner; Serious Prose.

The Mandan Speech Team also won the National Forensic League National Qualifying Tournament held April 13-15, and won the Sweepstakes Trophy. Six MHS students qualified for the National Tournament to be held in Birmingham, Alabama in June.

Those members are: Nick Leingang, Brittany Kuhn, Lindsay Ellefson, Hannah Andring, Jonathon Wanner and Sarah Fredericks.

I do need to let the chamber know that some of the members of the speech team were not able to be with us today because they are part of the Mandan band that is performing at a festival in Chicago. We also wish them the best.

I would also like to recognize the coaches that have provided the leadership and dedication to the Mandan speech program: Pat Pins -- Head Coach and Assistant Coaches Natalie Eraas, Annette Bender and Scott VanDyke.

District 34, the City of Mandan, and the State of North Dakota are very proud of each of you and your accomplishments. You set your goals high, you put your game face on, you shot for the stars and you did it!

Mr. Speaker and members of this assembly, please join us in congratulating the 3-Peat State Champs, the Mandan Speech Team.

**MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the remarks of Rep. R. Kelsch be printed in the Journal, which motion prevailed.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. KOPPELMAN MOVED** that the conference committee report on HCR 3054 as printed on HJ page 1716 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

HCR 3054 was placed on the Eleventh order.



**SECOND READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

**HCR 3054:** A concurrent resolution to create and enact a new section to article X of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to establishment and use of a North Dakota legacy fund; and to provide an effective date.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the resolution, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 82 YEAS, 8 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Klein; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Conklin; Conrad; Froelich; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klemin; Pinkerton; Thorpe

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Sukut

Engrossed HCR 3054 was declared adopted and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1010, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Grindberg, Wardner, Krauter and Reps. Thoreson, Delzer, Glassheim) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1190-1191, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1010 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1190 and 1191 of the House Journal and pages 1132 and 1133 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1010 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, replace the first "and" with "to create and enact a new subsection to section 26.1-36-23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the continuation of group hospital, surgical, and medical coverage after termination of employment;"

Page 1, line 4, after "salary" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 12, replace "419,738" with "548,923" and replace "6,206,485" with "6,335,670"

Page 1, line 15, replace "380,000" with "500,000" and replace "6,870,000" with "6,990,000"

Page 1, line 16, replace "854,625" with "1,103,810" and replace "15,309,749" with "15,558,934"

Page 1, after line 17, insert:

**"SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION - TRANSFER - STATE BONDING FUND.**

There is appropriated out of any moneys in the insurance regulatory trust fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$500,000, which the office of management and budget shall transfer to the state bonding fund, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011."

Page 1, line 19, replace "\$6,500,000" with "\$6,820,000"

Page 1, line 21, replace "\$300,000" with "\$620,000"

Page 1, line 22, remove "Funding"

Page 1, remove line 23

Page 2, remove lines 19 through 24

Page 2, after line 30, insert:

"**SECTION 10.** A new subsection to section 26.1-36-23 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

- a. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, an employee or member who does not have an election of continuation coverage as described in this section in effect on the effective date of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 [Pub. L. 111-5], but who would be an assistance-eligible individual under title III of division B of the Act if the election were in effect, may elect continuation coverage. The employer or the group policyholder shall provide employees or members with additional written notice of the right to elect coverage under this subsection within sixty days of the date of enactment of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 or within fourteen days of the effective date of this Act, whichever is later. The employee or member may make the election in writing no later than sixty days after the date the employer or the group policyholder provides the notice to the employee or member.
- b. Continuation coverage elected under this subsection commences with the first period of coverage beginning after February 16, 2009, and may not extend beyond the period of continuation coverage that would have been required if the coverage had instead been elected under subsection 4.
- c. The period beginning on the date that the employee or member was involuntarily terminated and ending when the continuation coverage starts must be disregarded for the purpose of determining whether a preexisting condition exclusion period applies.
- d. An employee or member electing continuation under this subsection shall pay to the group policyholder or the employer, on a monthly basis in advance, the amount of contribution required by the policyholder or employer, but not more than the group rate for the insurance being continued under the group policy on the due date of each payment. The employee's or member's written election of continuation, together with the contribution required to establish contributions on a monthly basis in advance, must be given to the policyholder or employer within thirty-one days of the date the employee's or member's election of continuation coverage.
- e. Continuation of insurance under this subsection terminates at the earlier of the date when the person fails to satisfy subsection 2 or when the person fails to satisfy any requirement of subsection 6.
- f. The notification described in subsection 7 is not required for continuation coverage elected under this subsection.
- g. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the provisions of this section apply to an employee or member electing continuation coverage.

**SECTION 11. EMERGENCY.** Sections 2 and 10 of this Act are declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

#### **STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98011.0206 FN 1**

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

Engrossed HB 1010 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. THORESON MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1010 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1010, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1010:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the insurance commissioner; to provide for fund transfers; to provide for making payments of insurance premiums tax collections to fire departments; to create and enact a new subsection to section 26.1-36-23 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the continuation of group hospital, surgical, and medical coverage after termination of employment; to amend and reenact section 26.1-01-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the commissioner's salary; and to declare an emergency.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 90 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Sukut

Reengrossed HB 1010 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1554, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Cook, Dever, Nelson and Reps. Koppelman, Headland, J. Kelsh) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1310-1314, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1554 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1310-1314 of the House Journal and pages 1120-1124 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1554 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and reenact section 40-47-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction of cities; to provide legislative intent; and to declare an emergency.

**BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:**

**SECTION 1. AMENDMENT.** Section 40-47-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**~~40-47-01.1. (Effective through July 31, 2009) Extraterritorial zoning—  
Mediation—Determination by administrative law judge.~~**

- ~~4. A city may, by ordinance, extend the application of a city's zoning regulations to any quarter quarter section of unincorporated territory if a majority of the quarter quarter section is located within the following distance of the corporate limits of the city:~~
  - ~~a. One half mile [80 kilometer] if the city has a population of fewer than five thousand.~~
  - ~~b. One mile [1.61 kilometers] if the city has a population of five thousand or more, but fewer than twenty five thousand.~~
  - ~~c. Two miles [3.22 kilometers] if the city has a population of twenty five thousand or more.~~

- ~~2. Subject to subsections 5 and 6, a city, by ordinance, may extend the application of the city's zoning regulations to two times the distance allowed under subdivisions a, b, and c of subsection 1 if the extension is approved by at least five of six members of a committee established to review the proposed extension. The committee must consist of three members appointed by the governing body of the city and three members appointed, jointly, by the governing bodies of any political subdivision that is exercising zoning authority within the territory to be extraterritorially zoned.~~
- ~~3. If a quarter quarter section line divides a platted lot and the majority of that platted lot lies within the quarter quarter section, a city may apply its extraterritorial zoning authority to the remainder of that platted lot. If the majority of the platted lot lies outside the quarter quarter section, the city may not apply its extraterritorial zoning authority to any of that platted lot.~~
- ~~4. A city exercising its extraterritorial zoning authority shall hold a zoning transition meeting if the territory to be extraterritorially zoned is currently zoned. The city's zoning or planning commission shall provide at least fourteen days' notice of the meeting to the zoning board or boards of all political subdivisions losing their partial zoning authority. The purpose of the zoning transition meeting is to review existing zoning rules, regulations, and restrictions currently in place in the territory to be extraterritorially zoned and to plan for an orderly transition. The zoning transition meeting must take place before the city's adoption of an ordinance exercising extraterritorial zoning.~~
- ~~5. If two or more cities have boundaries at a distance where there is an overlap of extraterritorial zoning authority under this section, the governing bodies of the cities may enter into an agreement regarding the extraterritorial zoning authority of each city. The agreement must be for a specific term and is binding upon the cities unless the governing bodies of the cities agree to amend or rescind the agreement or unless determined otherwise by an administrative law judge in accordance with this chapter. If a dispute arises concerning the extraterritorial zoning authority of a city and the governing bodies of the cities involved fail to resolve the dispute, the dispute must be submitted to a committee for mediation. The committee must be comprised of one member appointed by the governor, one member of the governing body of each city, and one member of the planning commission of each city who resides outside the corporate city limits. The governor's appointee shall arrange and preside over the meeting and act as mediator at the meeting. A meeting may be continued until the dispute has been resolved or until the mediator determines that continued mediation is no longer worthwhile.~~
- ~~6. If the mediation committee is unable to resolve the dispute to the satisfaction of the governing bodies of all the cities involved, the governing body of any of the cities may petition the office of administrative hearings to appoint an administrative law judge to determine the extraterritorial zoning authority of the cities in the disputed area. A hearing may not be held until after at least two weeks' written notice has been given to the governing bodies of the cities involved in the dispute. At the hearing, the governor's appointee who mediated the meetings under subsection 4 shall provide information to the administrative law judge on the dispute between the cities involved and any proposed resolutions or recommendations made by a majority of the committee members. Any resident of, or person owning property in, a city involved in the dispute or the unincorporated territory that is the subject of the proposed extraterritorial zoning, a representative of such a resident or property owner, and any representative of a city involved, may appear at the hearing and present evidence on any matter to be determined by the administrative law judge. A decision by the administrative law judge is binding upon all the cities involved in the dispute and remains effective until the governing bodies of the cities agree to a change in the zoning authority of the cities. The governing body of a city may request a review of a decision of an administrative law judge due to changed circumstances at any time ten years after the decision has become final. An administrative law judge shall consider the following factors in making a decision under this subsection:~~

  - ~~a. The proportional extraterritorial zoning authority of the cities involved in the dispute;~~

- b- ~~The proximity of the land in dispute to the corporate limits of each city involved;~~
  - e- ~~The proximity of the land in dispute to developed property in the cities involved;~~
  - d- ~~Whether any of the cities has exercised extraterritorial zoning authority over the disputed land;~~
  - e- ~~Whether natural boundaries such as rivers, lakes, highways, or other physical characteristics affecting the land are present;~~
  - f- ~~The growth pattern of the cities involved in the dispute; and~~
  - g- ~~Any other factor determined to be relevant by the administrative law judge.~~
7. ~~For purposes of this section, the population of a city must be determined by the last official regular or special federal census. If a city has incorporated after a census, the population of the city must be determined by a census taken in accordance with chapter 40-22.~~
8. ~~When a portion of the city is attached to the bulk of the city by a strip of land less than one hundred feet [30.48 meters] wide, that portion and strip of land must be disregarded when determining the extraterritorial zoning limits of the city. This subsection does not affect the ability of a city to zone land within its city limits.~~
9. ~~For the purposes of this section, a quarter quarter section shall be determined in the manner provided by 2 Stat. 313 [43 U.S.C. 752]. When appropriate, the phrase "quarter quarter section" refers to the equivalent government lot.~~

**~~(Effective after July 31, 2009) Extraterritorial zoning - Mediation - Determination by administrative law judge - Definition.~~**

1. a. A city may, by ordinance, extend the application of a city's zoning regulations to any quarter quarter section of unincorporated territory if a majority of the quarter quarter section is located within the following distance of the corporate limits of the city:
- a- (1) One mile [1.61 kilometers] if the city has a population of less than five thousand. A city that has exercised its authority under this subdivision has joint zoning and subdivision regulation jurisdiction from one-half mile [.80 kilometer] to one mile [1.61 kilometers] with the other political subdivision.
  - b- (2) Two miles [3.22 kilometers] if the city has a population of five thousand or more, but less than twenty-five thousand. A city that has exercised its authority under this subdivision has joint zoning and subdivision regulation jurisdiction from one mile [1.61 kilometers] to two miles [3.22 kilometers] with the other political subdivision.
  - e- (3) Four miles [6.44 kilometers] if the city has a population of twenty-five thousand or more. A city that has exercised its authority under this subdivision has joint zoning and subdivision regulation jurisdiction from two miles [3.22 kilometers] to four miles [6.44 kilometers] with the other political subdivision.
- b. Any section or portion of a section of unincorporated territory within the area of joint zoning and subdivision regulation jurisdiction in which a plat or site plan has been presented before May 1, 2009, remains subject to the zoning designations and the regulations in place on May 1, 2009, unless changed as allowed under this section.
- c. The extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction and authority to receive applications and issue permits under this section may be changed by written agreement between the city and the other political subdivision.

2. Joint jurisdiction is jurisdiction in which the other political subdivision has jurisdiction to receive applications and issue permits and impose administrative fees for applications and permits. In addition, under this jurisdiction the other political subdivision may adopt, modify, and enforce any zoning designation or regulation and approve any subdivision plat or regulation. For a decision to be final, the other political subdivision shall give written notice to the city. The city may request negotiation as to any decision made by the other political subdivision under the other political subdivision's jurisdiction within thirty days of notice. If negotiation is not requested, the decision of the other political subdivision is final. If the governing body of the other political subdivision and the city do not come to an agreement as to the disputed zone or subdivision regulation within thirty days of request for negotiation, the dispute must be submitted to a committee for mediation. The committee must be comprised of one member appointed by the governor and two members of the governing body of the other political subdivision and two members of the governing body of the city. The governor's appointee shall arrange and preside over the meeting and act as mediator at the meeting. A meeting may be continued until the dispute has been resolved or until the mediator determines that continued mediation is no longer worthwhile. If the mediation committee is unable to resolve the dispute to the satisfaction of the governing bodies, the dispute must be resolved by the board of county commissioners.
3. Notwithstanding subsection 2, in any section or portion of a section of unincorporated territory in which there would otherwise be joint jurisdiction and in which a plat or site plan has been presented before May 1, 2009, the city has jurisdiction to receive applications and issue permits and impose administrative fees for applications and permits relating to zoning and subdivision regulation. In addition, under this jurisdiction the city may adopt, modify, and enforce any zoning designation or regulation and approve any subdivision plat or regulation. For a decision of the city made after May 1, 2009, to be final, the city shall give written notice of the decision of the governing body of the political subdivision that would otherwise have jurisdiction. The governing body may request negotiation as to any decision made by the city under the city's jurisdiction within thirty days of notice. If negotiation is not requested, the decision of the city is final. If the city and governing body of the political subdivision that would otherwise have jurisdiction do not come to an agreement as to the disputed zoning or subdivision regulation within thirty days of the request for negotiation, the dispute must be submitted to a committee for mediation. The committee must be comprised of one member appointed by the governor and two members of the governing body of the other political subdivision and two members of the governing body of the city. The governor's appointee shall arrange and preside over the meeting and act as mediator at the meeting. A meeting may be continued until the dispute has been resolved or until the mediator determines that continued mediation is no longer worthwhile. If the mediation committee is unable to resolve the dispute to the satisfaction of the governing bodies, the dispute must be resolved by the board of county commissioners.
4. If a quarter quarter section line divides a platted lot and the majority of that platted lot lies within the quarter quarter section, a city may apply its extraterritorial zoning authority to the remainder of that platted lot. If the majority of the platted lot lies outside the quarter quarter section, the city may not apply its extraterritorial zoning authority to any of that platted lot.
3. 5. A city exercising its extraterritorial zoning authority shall hold a zoning transition meeting if the territory to be extraterritorially zoned is currently zoned. The city's zoning or planning commission shall provide at least fourteen days' notice of the meeting to the zoning board or boards of all political subdivisions losing their partial zoning authority. The purpose of the zoning transition meeting is to review existing zoning rules, regulations, and restrictions currently in place in the territory to be extraterritorially zoned and to plan for an orderly transition. The zoning transition meeting must take place before the city's adoption of an ordinance exercising extraterritorial zoning.

4. 6. If two or more cities have boundaries at a distance where there is an overlap of extraterritorial zoning authority under this section, the governing bodies of the cities may enter into an agreement regarding the extraterritorial zoning authority of each city. The agreement must be for a specific term and is binding upon the cities unless the governing bodies of the cities agree to amend or rescind the agreement or unless determined otherwise by an administrative law judge in accordance with this chapter. If a dispute arises concerning the extraterritorial zoning authority of a city and the governing bodies of the cities involved fail to resolve the dispute, the dispute must be submitted to a committee for mediation. The committee must be comprised of one member appointed by the governor, one member of the governing body of each city, and one member of the planning commission of each city who resides outside the corporate city limits. The governor's appointee shall arrange and preside over the meeting and act as mediator at the meeting. A meeting may be continued until the dispute has been resolved or until the mediator determines that continued mediation is no longer worthwhile.
5. 7. If the mediation committee is unable to resolve the dispute to the satisfaction of the governing bodies of all the cities involved, the governing body of any of the cities may petition the office of administrative hearings to appoint an administrative law judge to determine the extraterritorial zoning authority of the cities in the disputed area. A hearing may not be held until after at least two weeks' written notice has been given to the governing bodies of the cities involved in the dispute. At the hearing, the governor's appointee who mediated the meetings under subsection 4 6 shall provide information to the administrative law judge on the dispute between the cities involved and any proposed resolutions or recommendations made by a majority of the committee members. Any resident of, or person owning property in, a city involved in the dispute or the unincorporated territory that is the subject of the proposed extraterritorial zoning, a representative of such a resident or property owner, and any representative of a city involved, may appear at the hearing and present evidence on any matter to be determined by the administrative law judge. A decision by the administrative law judge is binding upon all the cities involved in the dispute and remains effective until the governing bodies of the cities agree to a change in the zoning authority of the cities. The governing body of a city may request a review of a decision of an administrative law judge due to changed circumstances at any time ten years after the decision has become final. An administrative law judge shall consider the following factors in making a decision under this subsection:
- a. The proportional extraterritorial zoning authority of the cities involved in the dispute;
  - b. The proximity of the land in dispute to the corporate limits of each city involved;
  - c. The proximity of the land in dispute to developed property in the cities involved;
  - d. Whether any of the cities has exercised extraterritorial zoning authority over the disputed land;
  - e. Whether natural boundaries such as rivers, lakes, highways, or other physical characteristics affecting the land are present;
  - f. The growth pattern of the cities involved in the dispute; and
  - g. Any other factor determined to be relevant by the administrative law judge.
6. 8. For purposes of this section, the population of a city must be determined by the last official regular or special federal census. If a city has incorporated after a census, the population of the city must be determined by a census taken in accordance with chapter 40-22.
7. 9. When a portion of the city is attached to the bulk of the city by a strip of land less than one hundred feet [30.48 meters] wide, that portion and strip of land must be disregarded when determining the extraterritorial zoning

limits of the city. This subsection does not affect the ability of a city to zone land within its city limits.

- 8- 10. For the purposes of this section, a section or a quarter quarter section shall be as determined in the manner provided by 2 Stat. 313 [43 U.S.C. 752]. When appropriate, the phrase "quarter quarter section" refers to the equivalent government lot.
11. As used in this section, "other political subdivision" means a political subdivision, not including another city, which would otherwise have zoning or subdivision regulation jurisdiction.

**SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT.** It is the intent of the sixty-first legislative assembly that land use regulations under consideration by local governments be readily available to the public. Local governments are encouraged to jointly discuss their land use regulations and consider the cumulative impact of local regulations.

**SECTION 3. EMERGENCY.** This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1554 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. KOPPELMAN MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1554 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1554, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1554:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 40-47-01.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to extraterritorial zoning jurisdiction of cities; to provide legislative intent; and to declare an emergency.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 87 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunsakor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Drovdal; Nathe; Weiler

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Sukut

Reengrossed HB 1554 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

**SB 2007, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Kilzer, Bowman, Mathern and Reps. Kreidt, Nelson, Metcalf) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1224-1225, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2007 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1224 and 1225 of the Senate Journal and pages 1121 and 1122 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2007 be amended as follows:



Page 1, line 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide for contingent funding;"

Page 1, line 3, remove "and" and after "intent" insert "; and to provide for a report to the budget section"

Page 1, line 15, replace "2,810,639" with "2,705,740" and replace "11,643,754" with "11,538,855"

Page 1, line 16, replace "1,131,757" with "1,049,857" and replace "4,643,757" with "4,561,857"

Page 1, line 17, replace "(14,651,180)" with "(14,685,871)" and replace "294,597" with "259,906"

Page 1, line 19, replace the first "110,088" with "90,088" and replace the second "110,088" with "90,088"

Page 1, line 20, replace "(\$10,598,696)" with "(\$10,840,186)" and replace "16,692,196" with "16,450,706"

Page 1, line 21, replace "(12,354,465)" with "(12,397,937)" and replace "11,076,861" with "11,033,389"

Page 1, line 22, replace "1,755,769" with "1,557,751" and replace "5,615,335" with "5,417,317"

Page 2, line 4, replace "198,888" with "204,321" and replace "1,006,054" with "1,011,487"

Page 2, line 5, replace "198,888" with "204,321" and replace "1,006,054" with "1,011,487"

Page 2, line 11, replace "1,954,657" with "1,762,072" and replace "6,621,389" with "6,428,804"

Page 2, line 12, replace "(12,354,465)" with "(12,279,346)" and replace "11,076,861" with "11,151,980"

Page 2, line 13, replace "(\$10,399,808)" with "(\$10,517,274)" and replace "17,698,250" with "17,580,784"

Page 2, line 23, replace "110,088" with "90,088"

Page 2, line 24, replace "Carpet and floor tile repairs" with "General fund salary funding of new facility positions" and replace "20,000" with "502,240"

Page 2, line 28, replace "228,488" with "690,728"

Page 2, line 29, replace "288,488" with "690,728"

Page 3, after line 4, insert:

**"SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - FEDERAL FISCAL STIMULUS FUNDS - ADDITIONAL FUNDING APPROVAL.** The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated from federal funds made available to the state under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, not otherwise appropriated, to the veterans' home, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011, as follows:

Thermal imager (funds from the department of commerce)	\$5,500
Electronic health records system	98,400
Bobcat utility vehicle	<u>14,691</u>
Total federal funds	\$118,591

The veterans' home may seek emergency commission and budget section approval under chapter 54-16 for authority to spend any additional federal funds received under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 in excess of the amounts appropriated in this section for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

Any federal funds appropriated under this section are not a part of the agency's 2011-13 base budget. Any program expenditures made with these funds will not be replaced with state funds after the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 funds are no longer available.

**SECTION 4. CONTINGENT FUNDING - EQUIPMENT AND PROJECTS.**

Section 1 of this Act includes \$5,500 for a thermal imager and \$98,400 for an electronic health care records system from the general fund which may be spent only to the extent that federal funds appropriated in section 3 of this Act are not available for these purposes.

**SECTION 5. VETERANS' HOME SHARE OF SALARY EQUITY POOL.**

The office of management and budget shall provide three-fourths of one percent of any general fund salary equity pool that is appropriated for salary equity increases for classified state employees, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011, to the veterans' home."

Page 3, after line 16, insert:

**"SECTION 8. REPORT TO BUDGET SECTION - VETERANS' HOME CONSTRUCTION PROJECT.** The veterans' home construction project manager shall provide a quarterly written summary report to the budget section regarding the status of the veterans' home construction project during the 2009-10 interim."

Renumber accordingly

**STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98026.0207 FN 3**

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

Engrossed SB 2007 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. KREIDT MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2007 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2007, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2007:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the veterans' home and department of veterans' affairs; to provide for contingent funding; to provide an exception to the moratorium on expansion of basic care bed capacity; to provide legislative intent; and to provide for a report to the budget section.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 85 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; Delmore; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunsakor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** DeKrey; Delzer; Dosch; Kasper; Keiser

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Sukut

Engrossed SB 2007, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2021, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Christmann, Fischer, Robinson and Reps. Thoreson, Dosch, Glassheim) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1255-1258, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2021 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1255-1258 of the Senate Journal and pages 1244-1247 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2021 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after the first semicolon insert "to provide a contingent appropriation;"; after the second semicolon insert "to provide for a legislative council study; to provide for a report;"; and remove "and"

Page 1, line 4, after "committee" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 14, replace "6,462,653" with "4,882,814" and replace "44,144,782" with "42,564,943"

Page 1, line 19, replace "2,238,371" with "(25,512)" and replace "2,466,325" with "202,442"

Page 1, line 24, replace "2,508,533" with "2,408,533" and replace "3,709,239" with "3,609,239"

Page 2, line 1, replace "16,288,104" with "12,344,382" and replace "139,342,795" with "135,399,073"

Page 2, line 2, replace "7,974,129" with "5,900,401" and replace "120,980,899" with "118,907,171"

Page 2, line 3, replace "8,313,975" with "6,443,981" and replace "18,361,896" with "16,491,902"

Page 2, after line 4, insert:

**"SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION - FEDERAL FISCAL STIMULUS FUNDS - ADDITIONAL FUNDING APPROVAL.** The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds as may be necessary, are appropriated from federal funds made available to the state under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, not otherwise appropriated, to the information technology department, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011, as follows:

Statewide longitudinal data system	\$2,263,883
------------------------------------	-------------

The information technology department may seek emergency commission and budget section approval under chapter 54-16 for authority to spend any additional federal funds received under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 in excess of the amounts appropriated in this section, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

Any federal funds appropriated under this section are not a part of the agency's 2011-13 base budget. Any program expenditures made with these funds will not be replaced with state funds after the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 funds are no longer available.

**SECTION 3. CONTINGENT GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL.** If the federal funds appropriated under section 2 of this Act are not available to provide the sum of \$2,263,883, there is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$2,263,883, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the information technology department for costs associated with a statewide longitudinal data system, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011. The information technology department may spend the general fund moneys only to the extent that federal funds are not available to provide the \$2,263,883 appropriated under section 2 of this Act and subject to approval by the budget section."

Page 2, line 14, replace "369,748" with "269,748"

Page 2, line 16, replace "936,638" with "353,600"

Page 2, line 18, replace "2,606,386" with "1,923,348"

Page 3, after line 2, insert:

**"SECTION 7. DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION - STATEWIDE LONGITUDINAL DATA SYSTEM EXPENDITURES - APPROVAL.** The department of public instruction may spend only the federal funds appropriated in House Bill No. 1013

for costs associated with the statewide longitudinal data system upon approval of the expenditures by the information technology department, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 8. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SHARING INITIATIVE.** During the 2009-10 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying the value of the information technology department's criminal justice information sharing initiative. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-second legislative assembly.

**SECTION 9. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT OUTSOURCING - REPORT TO INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY COMMITTEE.** The information technology department shall report to the information technology committee on:

1. The department's current level of outsourcing of its information technology services.
2. Nonessential information technology services that could be considered for outsourcing.
3. The number of the department's employees who have resigned from the department to provide information technology consulting services in the private sector and the number of which have been rehired by the department.
4. The department's efforts to assist in the creation of North Dakota technology-related companies.

The information technology committee shall incorporate the information received in its report to the legislative council."

Page 5, after line 5, insert:

**"SECTION 11. EMERGENCY.** Section 2 of this Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

#### **STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98040.0207 FN 1**

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

Engrossed SB 2021 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. THORESON MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2021 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2021, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

#### **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2021:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the information technology department; to provide a contingent appropriation; to provide for transfers; to provide for a legislative council study; to provide for a report; to provide a continuing appropriation; to amend and reenact section 15.1-02-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to membership of the statewide longitudinal data system committee; and to declare an emergency.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 85 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunsakor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter;

Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Drovdal; Froelich; Kasper; Kerzman; Vigesaa

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Sukut

Engrossed SB 2021, as amended, passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE**

**REP. WEISZ MOVED** that the House do concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1385 as printed on HJ pages 1141-1143, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

HB 1385 was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

#### **SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1385:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 50-24.6-02 and 50-24.6-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the drug use review board and the prior authorization program.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 90 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich; Kingsbury; Sukut

Engrossed HB 1385 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has concurred in the Senate amendments and subsequently passed: HB 1385.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: SB 2021.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2007.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1010, HB 1554.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HCR 3054.

#### **MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: HB 1011, HB 1017, HB 1035, HB 1116, HB 1151, HB 1295, HB 1304, HB 1425, HB 1436.

**DELIVERY OF ENROLLED BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS**

The following bills were delivered to the Governor for approval on April 30, 2009: HB 1011, HB 1017, HB 1035, HB 1116, HB 1151, HB 1295, HB 1304, HB 1425, HB 1436.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: HCR 3063, HCR 3067.

**DELIVERY OF ENROLLED BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS**

The following resolutions were delivered to the Secretary of State for filing on April 30, 2009: HCR 3063, HCR 3067.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1006, HB 1057, HB 1360, HB 1368.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has amended, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1020.

**SENATE AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1020**

Page 1, line 2, replace "an exemption" with "exemptions"

Page 1, line 3, replace "provide an appropriation for repayment of the line of credit" with "declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 12, replace "488,031" with "522,808" and replace "2,942,897" with "2,977,674"

Page 1, line 13, replace "137,000,806" with "137,223,637" and replace "307,545,203" with "307,768,034"

Page 1, line 14, replace "137,488,837" with "137,746,445" and replace "310,488,100" with "310,745,708"

Page 1, line 15, replace "136,298,107" with "134,799,793" and replace "298,420,123" with "296,921,809"

Page 1, line 16, replace "1,190,730" with "2,946,652" and replace "12,067,977" with "13,823,899"

Page 1, after line 24, insert:

**"SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION - FEDERAL FISCAL STIMULUS FUNDS - ADDITIONAL FUNDING APPROVAL.** There is appropriated out of any federal funds made available to the state under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$12,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the state water commission for the purpose of providing funding for the southwest pipeline project, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

The state water commission may seek emergency commission and budget section approval under chapter 54-16 for authority to spend any additional federal funds received under the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 in excess of the amounts appropriated in this section, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

Any federal funds appropriated under this section are not a part of the agency's 2011-13 base budget. Any program expenditures made with these funds will not be replaced with state funds after the federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 funds are no longer available."

Page 2, after line 17, insert:

**"SECTION 7. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - FARGO FLOOD CONTROL.** It is the intent of the sixty-first legislative assembly that a total of \$75,000,000 be committed by the state as the state cost-share for Fargo flood control, of which \$45,000,000 is provided for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011, in the water and atmospheric resources line item in section 1 of this Act.

**SECTION 8. FARGO FLOOD CONTROL EXPENDITURES - EXEMPTION.** Funds spent by the state water commission for Fargo flood control during the 2009-11

biennium may be used only for land purchases and construction and may not be used for administration, engineering, legal, planning, or other similar purposes. Any funds allocated by the state water commission for Fargo flood control of up to \$45,000,000 for the 2009-11 biennium which are not spent by June 30, 2011, are not subject to section 54-44.1-11 and must be continued into the next or subsequent bienniums and may be expended only for Fargo flood control projects.

**SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - STATE WATER COMMISSION PROJECTS.** It is the intent of the sixty-first legislative assembly that of the funds appropriated in the water and atmospheric resources line item in section 1 of this Act, the state water commission provide funding for the following projects, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011:

Digital elevation mapping project	\$300,000
Enhancement of the local share of funding for the Renwick dam in Pembina County	\$100,000
Evaluate, in conjunction with state, local, and federal officials and entities, long-term flood control solutions in the Red River valley	\$500,000
Michigan spillway in Nelson County	\$500,000

**SECTION 10. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - NELSON COUNTY WATER RESOURCE DISTRICT.** It is the intent of the sixty-first legislative assembly that the state water commission assist the Nelson County water resource district by providing engineering and permitting services, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 11. BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA LOAN AUTHORIZATION - APPROPRIATION.** The state water commission may borrow the sum of \$22,000,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the Bank of North Dakota, which is appropriated for the purpose of emergency flood control and other critical water needs, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 12. EMERGENCY.** Section 3 of this Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

#### **STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98020.0207 FN 3**

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2008, SB 2038, SB 2178.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1019, HB 1305.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: SB 2002, SB 2006, SB 2016, SB 2017, SB 2097, SB 2195, SB 2201, SB 2230.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1007, HB 1090, HB 1216, HB 1399, HB 1412, HB 1449.

#### **MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the House stand in recess until 6:00 p.m., which motion prevailed.

**THE HOUSE RECONVENED** pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Monson presiding.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE**

**REP. SVEDJAN MOVED** that the House do not concur in the Senate amendments to Engrossed HB 1020, and that a conference committee be appointed to meet with a like committee from the Senate, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

**APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**THE SPEAKER APPOINTED** as a Conference Committee on Engrossed HB 1020: Reps. Skarphol, Wald, Williams.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1009, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Bowman, Fischer, Krauter and Reps. Klein, Martinson, Onstad) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1381-1382, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1009 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1381 and 1382 of the House Journal and pages 1263 and 1264 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1009 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, replace "section" with "sections 4-01-19 and", after "4-01-21" insert "and subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 19-18-04", and after "to" insert "marketing program revenue,"

Page 1, line 4, after "commissioner" insert ", and pesticide registration fees", remove "to provide for transfers; and", and after "study" insert "; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 13, replace "1,145,262" with "1,581,356" and replace "8,130,102" with "8,566,196"

Page 1, line 14, replace "1,065,577" with "1,380,220" and replace "5,779,960" with "6,094,603"

Page 1, line 17, replace "78,623" with "263,623" and replace "2,378,325" with "2,563,325"

Page 1, line 20, replace "3,293,462" with "4,229,199" and replace "20,380,612" with "21,316,349"

Page 1, line 21, replace "2,141,162" with "2,706,140" and replace "13,529,488" with "14,094,466"

Page 1, line 22, replace "1,152,300" with "1,523,059" and replace "6,851,124" with "7,221,883"

Page 1, line 23, replace "2.00" with "7.00" and replace "69.50" with "74.50"

Page 1, after line 23, insert:

**"SECTION 2. APPROPRIATION.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$130,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the agriculture commissioner for the purpose of employing a department transition support position, for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011. The agriculture commissioner is authorized one full-time equivalent position for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending December 31, 2010. The funding provided in this section is considered one-time funding."

Page 2, line 3, replace "\$3,529,556" with "\$3,888,578"

Page 2, line 12, replace "\$768,800" with "\$968,800"

Page 3, replace lines 4 through 9 with:

**"SECTION 8. LIVESTOCK HEALTH PERMIT INSPECTION PROGRAM.** The state board of animal health shall increase the number of health permit inspections on livestock entering the state for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011. As part of the program, the board shall provide public information on the results of the livestock health permit inspections.

**SECTION 9. OFFICE SPACE LEASE FUNDING - BUDGET SECTION APPROVAL.** The operating expenses line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of \$120,000 from the general fund which the agriculture commissioner may use to lease additional office space for department purposes, subject to budget section approval.

**SECTION 10. PROJECT SAFE SEND - 2009 FLOOD PESTICIDE CLEANUP.** The operating expenses line item in section 1 of this Act includes the sum of \$40,000 from the environment and rangeland protection fund which the agriculture commissioner shall use for the collection of damaged pesticides resulting from 2009 flooding under the



project safe send program for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 11. AMENDMENT.** Section 4-01-19 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**4-01-19. Marketing bureau.** The agriculture commissioner shall establish and maintain a marketing bureau for the purpose of gathering and disseminating statistical information on agricultural marketing problems of the state and engaging in marketing services of agricultural products. Any moneys received or generated by the pride of Dakota program must be deposited in the ~~general~~ agriculture department operating fund in the state treasury."

Page 3, after line 15, insert:

**"SECTION 13. AMENDMENT.** Subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- d. Be accompanied by a registration fee of three hundred fifty dollars for each product to be registered. At the close of each calendar month, the commissioner shall transmit to the state treasurer all moneys received for the registrations. The state treasurer shall credit ~~fifty dollars for each registered product to the general fund in the state treasury and the remainder of the registration fee for each registered product to the environment and rangeland protection fund.~~

**SECTION 14. FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT POSITION - EMERGENCY COMMISSION APPROVAL.** The agriculture commissioner may request from the emergency commission an additional full-time equivalent position for the state meat inspection program if demand for the program increases sufficient to require the position for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 15. EMERGENCY.** The sum of \$40,000 for project safe send included in the operating expenses line item in section 1 and section 2 of this Act are declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly

#### **STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98010.0208 FN 3**

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

Engrossed HB 1009 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. KLEIN MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1009 be adopted.

Engrossed HB 1009, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order.

#### **SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1009:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the agriculture commissioner; to provide for a livestock health permit inspection program; to amend and reenact sections 4-01-19 and 4-01-21 and subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 19-18-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to marketing program revenue, the salary of the agriculture commissioner, and pesticide registration fees; to provide for a legislative council study; and to declare an emergency.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 66 YEAS, 26 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Grande; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kerzman; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemm; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Rust; Schatz; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan;

Thoreson; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Amerman; Boucher; Delmore; Ekstrom; Glassheim; Griffin; Gruchalla; Holman; Hunskor; Kaldor; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kilichowski; Koppelman; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Potter; Ruby; Schmidt; Schneider; Thorpe; Vig; Winrich; Wolf; Zaiser

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich

Reengrossed HB 1009 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause was declared carried.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

**HB 1324, as reengrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Miller, Cook, Anderson and Reps. Belter, Headland, S. Kelsh) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments on HJ pages 1220-1242, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1324 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1220-1242 of the House Journal and pages 1037-1059 of the Senate Journal and that Reengrossed House Bill No. 1324 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 6-09.8-01, subsection 4 of section 10-33-124, subsection 5 of section 11-37-08, sections 27-17-06 and 37-28-07, subsections 1 and 3 of section 40-63-04, section 40-63-06, subsection 4 of section 40-63-07, subsections 1 and 2 of section 57-38-01.7, subsections 1 and 4 of section 57-38-01.8, sections 57-38-01.14, 57-38-01.16, and 57-38-01.17, subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.20, subsections 2 and 4 of section 57-38-01.21, sections 57-38-01.22, 57-38-01.23, 57-38-01.24, 57-38-01.25, and 57-38-01.26, subsection 6 of section 57-38-01.27, subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.29, subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.30, section 57-38-04, subsection 2 of section 57-38-08.1, sections 57-38-30.3 and 57-38-30.5, subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 57-38-40, sections 57-38.5-03 and 57-38.6-03, and subsection 3 of section 57-51-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to elimination of the optional long-form individual, estate, and trust income tax return and allocation of oil and gas gross production tax revenues to political subdivisions; to repeal sections 57-38-01.2, 57-38-01.18, 57-38-02, 57-38-06.1, 57-38-29, 57-38-29.2, 57-38-30.4, 57-38-67, 57-38-68, 57-38-69, and 57-38-70 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to elimination of the optional long-form individual, estate, and trust income tax return; to provide for legislative council studies; and to provide an effective date.

#### BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

**SECTION 1. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 1 of section 6-09.8-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. "Beginning farmer" means ~~a person~~ an individual who qualifies as a beginning farmer ~~under subsection 2 of section 57-38-67~~ who:
  - a. Is a resident of this state;
  - b. Receives more than half of that person's gross annual income from farming, unless the person initially commences farming during the year of the application under this chapter;
  - c. Intends to use any farmland to be purchased or rented for agricultural purposes;
  - d. Is adequately trained by education in the type of farming operation which the person wishes to begin on the purchased or rented land referred to in subdivision c through satisfactory participation in the adult farm management education program of the state board for career and technical education or an equivalent program approved by the agriculture commissioner; and

- e. Has, including the net worth of any dependents and spouse, a net worth of less than one hundred thousand dollars, not including the value of their equity in their principal residence, the value of one personal or family motor vehicle, and the value of their household goods, including furniture, appliances, musical instruments, clothing, and other personal belongings.

**SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 10-33-124 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- 4. a. ~~An individual or a~~ A corporation that buys membership in, or pays dues or contributes to, a nonprofit development corporation is entitled to an income tax credit against the tax liability under section 57-38-30 equal to twenty-five percent of the amount paid.
- b. This credit may not be claimed by ~~an individual who elects to file an income tax return under section 57-38-30.3 or by~~ a corporation that is recognized as a subchapter S corporation under section 57-38-01.4.
- c. No taxpayer is entitled to more than two thousand dollars in total income tax credits under this section.
- d. The amount of the credit under this section in excess of the taxpayer's income tax liability may be carried forward for up to seven taxable years.

**SECTION 3. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 5 of section 11-37-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- 5. Bonds issued by a commerce authority under this section are declared to be issued for an essential public government purpose, and together with interest and income on the bonds, are exempt from all individual and corporate taxes imposed under sections 57-35.3-03, ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, and 57-38-30.3.

**SECTION 4. AMENDMENT.** Section 27-17-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**27-17-06. Immediate withdrawal of present active judges from judges retirement fund.**

- 1. From and after July 1, 1973, each judge of the supreme or district court serving on that date and each former judge of the supreme or district court, not receiving judicial retirement salary, may elect to withdraw the judge's previous contributions made pursuant to this chapter, and thereafter not participate in a judicial retirement program provided for by law. This option ceases to be available and may not be exercised after June 30, 1975. If a judge selects this option, the judge is entitled to receive the combined total of the following sums:
  - ~~4-~~ a. The entire amount of the judge's previous contributions made pursuant to this chapter, to be calculated to the date of election under this section; plus
  - ~~2-~~ b. An amount calculated by applying the vesting schedule set forth in section 54-52-11 to an amount equal to sixty percent of the judge's individual contributions as calculated in subsection 1, plus earnings thereon as calculated in subsection 3; plus
  - ~~3-~~ c. An amount calculated by applying the figure .05625 to the periodic annual or partial annual balances in the individual judge's account during the judge's years of service prior to selecting the option provided by this section. The figure applied pursuant to this ~~subsection~~ subdivision must be compounded annually.
- 2. The total amounts received pursuant to this section may not be considered taxable income for the purposes of chapter 57-38 ~~and may be treated as an additional adjustment reducing the amount of taxable income in addition to those provided in section 57-38-01.2.~~ Selection of the option provided

by this section must be made in writing to the director of the office of management and budget.

**SECTION 5. AMENDMENT.** Section 37-28-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**37-28-07. Payments exempt from taxation and from execution - Assignments void - Debts to state and political subdivisions not deducted.** Payments under this chapter are exempt from all state and local taxes, including taxes determined under section ~~57-38-29~~ or 57-38-30.3, and from levy, garnishment, attachment, and sale on execution. Any pledge, mortgage, sale, assignment, or transfer of any right, claim, or interest in any claim or payment under this chapter is void and payment to the veteran may not be denied because of any sums owed to the state or any political subdivisions, except as provided in section 37-26-05.

**SECTION 6. AMENDMENT.** Subsections 1 and 3 of section 40-63-04 of the North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows:

1. An individual taxpayer who purchases or rehabilitates single-family residential property for the individual's primary place of residence as a zone project is exempt from up to ten thousand dollars of personal income tax liability as determined under section ~~57-38-29~~ or 57-38-30.3 for five taxable years beginning with the date of occupancy or completion of rehabilitation.
3. If the cost of a new business purchase or expansion of an existing business, approved as a zone project, exceeds seventy-five thousand dollars, and the business is located in a city with a population of not more than two thousand five hundred, an individual taxpayer may, in lieu of the exemption provided in subsection 2, elect to take an income tax exemption of up to two thousand dollars of personal income tax liability as determined under section ~~57-38-29~~ or 57-38-30.3. The election must be made on the taxpayer's zone project application. The election is irrevocable and binding for the duration of the exemptions provided in subsection 2 or this subsection. If no election is made on the zone project application, the taxpayer is only eligible for the exemption provided in subsection 2.

**SECTION 7. AMENDMENT.** Section 40-63-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**40-63-06. Historic preservation and renovation tax credit.** A credit against state tax liability as determined under sections 57-35.3-03, ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, and 57-38-30.3 is allowed for investments in the historic preservation or renovation of property within the renaissance zone. The amount of the credit is twenty-five percent of the amount invested, up to a maximum of two hundred fifty thousand dollars. The credit may be claimed in the year in which the preservation or renovation is completed. Any excess credit may be carried forward for a period of up to five taxable years.

**SECTION 8. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 40-63-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. A credit against state tax liability as determined under section 57-35.3-03, ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 is allowed for investments in a renaissance fund organization. The amount of the credit is fifty percent of the amount invested in the renaissance fund organization during the taxable year. Any amount of credit which exceeds a taxpayer's tax liability for the taxable year may be carried forward for up to five taxable years after the taxable year in which the investment was made.

**SECTION 9. AMENDMENT.** Subsections 1 and 2 of section 57-38-01.7 of the North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows:

1. At the election of the taxpayer, there must be allowed, subject to the applicable limitations provided in this subsection, as a credit against the income tax ~~imposed by this chapter~~ liability under section 57-38-30 for the taxable year, an amount equal to fifty percent of the aggregate amount of charitable contributions made by the taxpayer during the year to nonprofit private institutions of higher education located within the state or to the North Dakota independent college fund.

- a. ~~In the case of a taxpayer other than a corporation, the amount allowable as a credit under this subsection for any taxable year may not exceed forty percent of the taxpayer's total income tax under this chapter for the year, or two hundred fifty dollars, whichever is less.~~
  - b. ~~In the case of a corporation, the~~ The amount allowable as a credit under this subsection for any taxable year may not exceed twenty percent of the corporation's total income tax under this chapter for the year, or two thousand five hundred dollars, whichever is less.
2. At the election of the taxpayer, there must be allowed, subject to the applicable limitations provided in this subsection, as a credit against the income tax ~~imposed by this chapter~~ liability under section 57-38-30 for the taxable year, an amount equal to fifty percent of the aggregate amount of charitable contributions made by the taxpayer during the year directly to nonprofit private institutions of secondary education, located within the state.
- a. ~~In the case of a taxpayer other than a corporation, the amount allowable as a credit under this subsection for any taxable year may not exceed forty percent of the taxpayer's total income tax under this chapter for the year, or two hundred fifty dollars, whichever is less.~~
  - b. ~~In the case of a corporation, the~~ The amount allowable as a credit under this subsection for any taxable year may not exceed twenty percent of the corporation's total income tax under this chapter for the year, or two thousand five hundred dollars, whichever is less.

**SECTION 10. AMENDMENT.** Subsections 1 and 4 of section 57-38-01.8 of the North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows:

- 1. ~~Any~~ A taxpayer filing a North Dakota income tax return pursuant to the provisions of this chapter may claim a credit against the tax liability under section 57-38-30 for the cost of a geothermal, solar, wind, or biomass energy device installed before January 1, 2011, in a building or on property owned or leased by the taxpayer in North Dakota. The credit provided in this section for a device installed before January 1, 2001, must be in an amount equal to five percent per year for three years, and for a device installed after December 31, 2000, must be in an amount equal to three percent per year for five years of the actual cost of acquisition and installation of the geothermal, solar, wind, or biomass energy device and must be subtracted from any income tax liability of the taxpayer as determined pursuant to the provisions of this chapter.
- 4. A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited liability company, or any other passthrough entity that installs a geothermal, solar, wind, or biomass energy device in a building or on property owned or leased by the passthrough entity must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of this section, and the amount of the credit allowed with respect to the entity's investments must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the total credit determined at the entity level must be passed through to the corporate partners, shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough entity.

**SECTION 11. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.14 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.14. No gain recognized on property subject to eminent domain sale or transfer.** If any private property, through the exercise of eminent domain, is involuntarily converted into property of either like or unlike kind, no gain, either ordinary or capital, may be recognized for corporate income tax purposes.

**SECTION 12. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.16 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.16. Income tax credit for employment of developmentally disabled or chronically mentally ill persons.** ~~Any~~ A taxpayer filing an income tax return under this chapter, ~~except a return on which liability is determined under section 57-38-30.3,~~ may claim a credit against the tax liability imposed under section 57-38-30 for a portion of the wages paid to a developmentally disabled or chronically mentally ill

employee. The credit allowed under this section equals five percent of up to six thousand dollars in wages paid during the first twelve months of employment by the taxpayer for each developmentally disabled or chronically mentally ill employee of the taxpayer. Only wages actually paid during the taxpayer's taxable year may be considered for purposes of this section. An employee of a subcontractor is considered an employee of the contractor to the extent of any wages paid under the contract.

The total of credits allowed under this section may not exceed fifty percent of the taxpayer's liability under this chapter.

**SECTION 13. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.17 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.17. Credit for investments in development corporations.** ~~An individual, estate, trust, or~~ A corporation is allowed, as a credit against a tax otherwise due under section ~~57-38-29 or~~ 57-38-30, the credit for buying membership in, or paying dues or contributions to, a certified nonprofit development corporation as provided in section 10-33-124.

**SECTION 14. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.20 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. An individual is entitled to a credit against the tax imposed under section ~~57-38-29 or~~ 57-38-30.3 in the amount of qualified care expenses under this section paid by the individual for the care of a qualifying family member during the taxable year.

**SECTION 15. AMENDMENT.** Subsections 2 and 4 of section 57-38-01.21 of the North Dakota Century Code are amended and reenacted as follows:

2. An individual is allowed a tax credit against the tax imposed by section ~~57-38-29 or~~ 57-38-30.3 in an amount equal to forty percent of the present value of the aggregate amount of the charitable gift portion of planned gifts made by the taxpayer during the year to a qualified nonprofit organization or qualified endowment. The maximum credit that may be claimed under this subsection for contributions made in a taxable year is ten thousand dollars, or twenty thousand dollars for married individuals filing a joint return. The credit allowed under this section may not exceed the taxpayer's income tax liability.
4. An estate or trust is allowed a tax credit in an amount equal to forty percent of a charitable gift to a qualified endowment. The maximum credit allowed under this subsection for contributions made in a taxable year is ten thousand dollars. The allowable credit must be apportioned to the estate or trust and to its beneficiaries on the basis of the income of the estate or trust allocable to each, and the beneficiaries may claim their share of the credit against the tax imposed by section ~~57-38-29; 57-38-30; or~~ 57-38-30.3. A beneficiary may claim the credit only in the beneficiary's taxable year in which the taxable year of the estate or trust ends. Subsections 6 and 7 apply to the estate or trust and its beneficiaries with respect to their respective shares of the apportioned credit.

**SECTION 16. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.22 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.22. Income tax credit for blending of biodiesel fuel.** A fuel supplier licensed pursuant to section 57-43.2-05 who blends biodiesel fuel is entitled to a credit against tax liability determined under section ~~57-38-29; 57-38-30; or~~ 57-38-30.3 in the amount of five cents per gallon [3.79 liters] of biodiesel fuel of at least five percent blend, otherwise known as B5. For purposes of this section, "biodiesel" means fuel meeting the specifications adopted by the American society for testing and materials. The credit under this section may not exceed the taxpayer's liability as determined under this chapter for the taxable year and each year's unused credit amount may be carried forward for up to five taxable years.

A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited liability company, or any other passthrough entity entitled to the credit under this section must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of this section, and the amount of the credit allowed must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the total credit determined at the entity level must be passed through to the partners,

shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough entity.

**SECTION 17. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.23 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.23. Income tax credit for biodiesel sales equipment costs.** A seller of biodiesel fuel is entitled to a credit against tax liability determined under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30; or 57-38-30.3 in the amount of ten percent per year for five years of the biodiesel fuel seller's direct costs incurred after December 31, 2004, to adapt or add equipment to a facility, licensed under section 57-43.2-05, to enable the facility to sell diesel fuel containing at least two percent biodiesel fuel by volume. For purposes of this section, "biodiesel fuel" means fuel meeting the specifications adopted by the American society for testing and materials. The credit under this section may not exceed a taxpayer's liability as determined under this chapter for the taxable year and each year's unused credit amount may be carried forward for up to five taxable years. A biodiesel fuel seller is limited to fifty thousand dollars in the cumulative amount of credits under this section for all taxable years. A biodiesel fuel seller may not claim a credit under this section for any taxable year before the taxable year in which the facility begins selling biodiesel fuel containing at least two percent biodiesel fuel by volume, but eligible costs incurred before the taxable year sales begin may be claimed for purposes of the credit under this section for taxable years on or after the taxable year sales of biodiesel fuel begin.

A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited liability company, or any other passthrough entity entitled to the credit under this section must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of this section, and the amount of the credit allowed must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the total credit determined at the entity level must be passed through to the partners, shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough entity.

**SECTION 18. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.24 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.24. Internship employment tax credit.**

1. A taxpayer that is an employer within this state is entitled to a credit as determined under this section against state income tax liability under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30; or 57-38-30.3 for qualified compensation paid to an intern employed in this state by the taxpayer. To qualify for the credit under this section, the internship program must meet the following qualifications:
  - a. The intern must be an enrolled student in an institution of higher education or vocational technical education program who is seeking a degree or a certification of completion in a major field of study closely related to the work experience performed for the taxpayer;
  - b. The internship must be taken for academic credit or count toward the completion of a vocational technical education program;
  - c. The intern must be supervised and evaluated by the taxpayer; and
  - d. The internship position must be located in this state.
2. The amount of the credit to which a taxpayer is entitled is ten percent of the stipend or salary paid to a college intern employed by the taxpayer. A taxpayer may not receive more than three thousand dollars in total credits under this section for all taxable years combined.
  - a. The tax credit under this section applies to a stipend or salary for not more than five interns employed at the same time.
  - b. A partnership, subchapter S corporation, or limited liability company that for tax purposes is treated like a partnership that is entitled to the credit under this section must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of calculating the credit. The amount of the allowable credit must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The total credit determined at the entity level must be passed through to the partners,

shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough entity.

**SECTION 19. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.25 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.25. Workforce recruitment credit for hard-to-fill employment positions.** A taxpayer that is an employer in this state is entitled to a credit as determined under this section against state income tax liability under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 for costs the taxpayer incurred during the tax year to recruit and hire employees for hard-to-fill employment positions within this state for which the annual salary for the position meets or exceeds the state average wage.

1. The amount of the credit to which a taxpayer is entitled is five percent of the salary paid for the first twelve consecutive months to the employee hired for the hard-to-fill employment position. To qualify for the credit under this section, the employee must be employed by the taxpayer in the hard-to-fill employment position for twelve consecutive months.
2. For purposes of this section:
  - a. "Extraordinary recruitment methods" means using all of the following:
    - (1) A person with the exclusive business purpose of recruiting employees and for which a fee is charged by that recruiter.
    - (2) An advertisement in a professional trade journal, magazine, or other publication, the main emphasis of which is providing information to a particular trade or profession.
    - (3) A web site, the sole purpose of which is to recruit employees and for which a fee is charged by the web site.
    - (4) Payment of a signing bonus, moving expenses, or nontypical fringe benefits.
  - b. "Hard-to-fill employment position" means a job that requires the employer to use extraordinary recruitment methods and for which the employer's recruitment efforts for the specific position have been unsuccessful for six consecutive calendar months.
  - c. "State average wage" means one hundred twenty-five percent of the state average wage published annually by job service North Dakota and which is in effect at the time the employee is hired.
3. The taxpayer may claim the credit in the first tax year beginning after the employee hired for the hard-to-fill position has completed the employee's first twelve consecutive months of employment in the hard-to-fill position with the taxpayer.
4. The credit under this section may not exceed a taxpayer's liability for the taxable year as determined under this chapter. Any amount of unused credit may be carried forward for up to four taxable years after the taxable year in which the credit could initially be claimed.
5. A partnership, subchapter S corporation, or limited liability company that for tax purposes is treated like a partnership that is entitled to the credit under this section must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of this section and the amount of the credit allowed must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the total credit determined at the passthrough entity level must be allowed to the members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough entity.

**SECTION 20. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-01.26 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-01.26. Angel fund investment tax credit.** A taxpayer is entitled to a credit against state income tax liability under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 for an investment made in an angel fund that is incorporated in this state. The angel fund must be in compliance with the securities laws of this state for the investment to



qualify for the tax credit under this section. The amount of the credit to which a taxpayer is entitled is forty-five percent of the amount invested by the taxpayer in an angel fund during the taxable year. The aggregate annual credit for which a taxpayer may obtain a tax credit is not more than forty-five thousand dollars. To be eligible for the credit, the investment must be at risk in the angel fund for at least three years. Investments placed in escrow do not qualify for the credit. The credit must be claimed in the taxable year in which the investment in the angel fund was received by the angel fund. The credit allowed may not exceed the liability for tax under this chapter. If the amount of credit determined under this section exceeds the liability for tax under this chapter, the excess may be carried forward to each of the four succeeding taxable years. A taxpayer claiming a credit under this section may not claim any credit available to the taxpayer as a result of an investment made by the angel fund in a qualified business under chapter 57-38.5 or 57-38.6.

**SECTION 21. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 6 of section 57-38-01.27 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

6. A taxpayer that is certified as a microbusiness is entitled to tax credits against tax liability as determined under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 equal to twenty percent of the taxpayer's new investment and new employment in the microbusiness during the taxable year. A taxpayer may not obtain more than ten thousand dollars in credits under this section over any combination of taxable years.

**SECTION 22. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.29 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. In addition to any other credit or deduction allowed by law for a homeowner, an individual is entitled to a credit against the tax imposed under section ~~57-38-29~~ or 57-38-30.3 for taxable years 2007 and 2008 in the amount of ten percent of property taxes or mobile home taxes that became due during the income tax taxable year and are paid which were levied against the individual's homestead in this state. For purposes of this section, "property taxes" does not include any special assessments.

**SECTION 23. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.30 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

1. In addition to any other credit or deduction allowed by law for a property owner, an individual or corporation is entitled to a credit against the tax imposed under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 for taxable years 2007 and 2008 in the amount of ten percent of property taxes or mobile home taxes that became due during the income tax taxable year and are paid which were levied against commercial property in this state. For purposes of this section, "property taxes" does not include any special assessments.
  - a. The amount of the credit under this section may not exceed one thousand dollars for any taxpayer.
  - b. The amount of the credit under this section may not exceed the taxpayer's tax liability under this chapter.
  - c. The amount of the credit under this section may not exceed one thousand dollars for married persons filing a joint return or five hundred dollars for a single individual or married individual filing separate returns.

**SECTION 24. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-04. Allocation and apportionment of gross income of individuals.** The gross income of individuals must be allocated and apportioned as follows:

1. a. Income from personal or professional services performed in this state by individuals must be assigned to this state regardless of the residence of the recipients of such income, except that income from such services performed within this state by an individual who resides and has the individual's place of abode in another state to which place of abode the individual customarily returns at least once a month must

be excluded from the individual's income for the purposes of this chapter if such income is subject to an income tax imposed by the state in which the individual resides, provided that the state in which the individual resides allows a similar exclusion for income received from similar services performed in that state by residents of North Dakota.

- b. Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the compensation received from services performed within this state by an individual, who performs services for a common carrier engaged in interstate transportation and who resides and has the individual's place of abode to which the individual customarily returns at least once a month in another state, must be excluded from income to the extent that the income is subject to an income tax imposed by the state of the individual's residence; provided, that the state allows a similar exclusion of the compensation received by residents of North Dakota for similar services performed therein, or a credit against the tax imposed on the income of residents of this state that is substantially similar in effect. For purposes of this subdivision, the term an individual who performs services for a common carrier engaged in interstate transportation is limited to an individual who performs the services for a common carrier only during the course of making regular runs into North Dakota or from within North Dakota to outside North Dakota, or both, on the transportation system of the common carrier.
  2.
    - a. Income received from personal or professional services performed by residents of this state, regardless of where such services are performed, and income received by residents of this state from intangible personal property must be assigned to this state.
    - ~~b. A resident individual, estate, or trust is entitled to a credit against the tax imposed under this chapter equal to the amount of income tax paid for the taxable year to another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia on income derived from sources in those jurisdictions that is also taxable under this section. The tax commissioner may require written proof of the tax paid to another state. The required proof must be provided in a form and manner as determined by the tax commissioner. For an individual, estate, or trust that is a resident of this state for the entire taxable year, the credit allowed under this subdivision may not exceed an amount equal to the tax imposed under this chapter multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction divided by total federal adjusted gross income less the amounts under subdivisions a and s of subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.2. For an individual, estate, or trust that is a resident of this state for only part of the taxable year, the credit allowed under this subdivision may not exceed the lesser of the following:~~
      - ~~(1) The tax imposed under this chapter multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction received while a resident of this state divided by federal adjusted gross income derived from North Dakota sources less the amounts under this subsection.~~
      - ~~(2) The tax paid to the other jurisdiction multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction received while a resident of this state divided by federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other states.~~
3. Income and gains received from tangible property not employed in the business and from tangible property employed in the business of the taxpayer, if such business consists principally of the holding of such property and collection of income and gains therefrom, must be assigned to this state without regard to the residence of the recipient if such property has a situs within this state.
4. Income derived from business activity carried on by an individual as a sole proprietorship, or through a partnership, subchapter S corporation, or other

passthrough entity, must be assigned to this state without regard to the residence of the individual if the business activity is conducted wholly within this state. Income derived from gaming activity carried on in this state by an individual must be assigned to this state without regard to the residence of the individual.

5. Whenever business activity is carried on partly within and partly without this state by a nonresident of this state as a sole proprietorship, or through a partnership, subchapter S corporation, or other passthrough entity, the entire income therefrom must be allocated to this state and to other states, according to the provisions of chapter 57-38.1, providing for allocation and apportionment of income of corporations doing business within and without this state.
6.
  - a. Income and gains received by a resident of this state from tangible property not employed in the business and from tangible property employed in the business of the taxpayer, if the business consists principally of the holding of the property and the collection of income and gains from the business, must be assigned to this state without regard to the situs of the property.
  - b. Income derived from business activity carried on by residents of this state, whether the business activity is conducted as a sole proprietorship, or through a partnership, subchapter S corporation, or other passthrough entity, must be assigned to this state without regard to where the business activity is conducted, and the provisions of chapter 57-38.1 do not apply. If the taxpayer believes the operation of this subdivision with respect to the taxpayer's income is unjust, the taxpayer may petition the tax commissioner who may allow use of another method of reporting income, including separate accounting.
  - ~~e. A resident individual, estate, or trust is entitled to a credit against the tax imposed under this chapter equal to the amount of income tax paid for the taxable year to another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia on income derived from sources in those jurisdictions that is also subject to tax under this section. The tax commissioner may require written proof of the tax paid to another state. The required proof must be provided in a form and manner as determined by the tax commissioner. For an individual, estate, or trust that is a resident of this state for the entire taxable year, the credit allowed under this subdivision may not exceed an amount equal to the tax imposed under this chapter multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction divided by total federal adjusted gross income less the amounts under subdivisions a and b of subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.2. For an individual, estate, or trust that is a resident of this state for only part of the taxable year, the credit allowed under this subdivision may not exceed the lesser of the following:~~
    - ~~(1) The tax imposed under this chapter multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction received while a resident of this state divided by federal adjusted gross income derived from North Dakota sources less the amounts under subdivisions a and b of subsection 2.~~
    - ~~(2) The tax paid to the other jurisdiction multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction received while a resident of this state divided by federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other states.~~
7. All other items of gross income must be assigned to the taxpayer's domicile.
8. The privileges granted nonresidents apply only when other states grant to the residents of North Dakota the same privilege.

~~This section applies to every income year beginning after December 31, 1956.~~

**SECTION 25. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 2 of section 57-38-08.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Resident partners, limited to individuals, estates, and trusts, must report their entire distributive share to this state as provided in subdivision b of subsection 6 of section 57-38-04, and may claim a credit for taxes paid to another state on that portion of their distributive share attributable to and taxed by another state, as provided in subdivision e j of subsection 6 1 of section ~~57-38-04~~ 57-38-30.3.

**SECTION 26. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-30.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-30.3. ~~Simplified method of computing~~ Individual, estate, and trust income tax.**

1. A tax is hereby imposed for each taxable year upon income earned or received in that taxable year by every resident and nonresident individual, estate, and trust. A taxpayer computing the tax under this section is only eligible for those adjustments or credits that are specifically provided for in this section. Provided, that for purposes of this section, any person required to file a state income tax return under this chapter, but who has not computed a federal taxable income figure, shall compute a federal taxable income figure using a pro forma return in order to determine a federal taxable income figure to be used as a starting point in computing state income tax under this section. The tax for individuals is equal to North Dakota taxable income multiplied by the rates in the applicable rate schedule in subdivisions a through d corresponding to an individual's filing status used for federal income tax purposes. For an estate or trust, the schedule in subdivision e must be used for purposes of this subsection.

a. Single, other than head of household or surviving spouse.

If North Dakota taxable income is:	The tax is equal to:
Not over \$27,050	2.10%
Over \$27,050 but not over \$65,550	\$568.05 plus 3.92% of amount over \$27,050
Over \$65,550 but not over \$136,750	\$2,077.25 plus 4.34% of amount over \$65,550
Over \$136,750 but not over \$297,350	\$5,167.33 plus 5.04% of amount over \$136,750
Over \$297,350	\$13,261.57 plus 5.54% of amount over \$297,350

b. Married filing jointly and surviving spouse.

If North Dakota taxable income is:	The tax is equal to:
Not over \$45,200	2.10%
Over \$45,200 but not over \$109,250	\$949.20 plus 3.92% of amount over \$45,200
Over \$109,250 but not over \$166,500	\$3,459.96 plus 4.34% of amount over \$109,250
Over \$166,500 but not over \$297,350	\$5,944.61 plus 5.04% of amount over \$166,500
Over \$297,350	\$12,539.45 plus 5.54% of amount over \$297,350

c. Married filing separately.

If North Dakota taxable income is:	The tax is equal to:
Not over \$22,600	2.10%
Over \$22,600 but not over \$54,625	\$474.60 plus 3.92% of amount over \$22,600
Over \$54,625 but not over \$83,250	\$1,729.98 plus 4.34% of amount over \$54,625
Over \$83,250 but not over \$148,675	\$2,972.31 plus 5.04% of amount over \$83,250
Over \$148,675	\$6,269.73 plus 5.54% of amount over \$148,675

d. Head of household.

If North Dakota taxable income is:	The tax is equal to:
Not over \$36,250	2.10%

Over \$36,250 but not over \$93,650	\$761.25 plus 3.92% of amount over \$36,250
Over \$93,650 but not over \$151,650	\$3,011.33 plus 4.34% of amount over \$93,650
Over \$151,650 but not over \$297,350	\$5,528.53 plus 5.04% of amount over \$151,650
Over \$297,350	\$12,871.81 plus 5.54% of amount over \$297,350

e. Estates and trusts.

If North Dakota taxable income is:	The tax is equal to:
Not over \$1,800	2.10%
Over \$1,800 but not over \$4,250	\$37.80 plus 3.92% of amount over \$1,800
Over \$4,250 but not over \$6,500	\$133.84 plus 4.34% of amount over \$4,250
Over \$6,500 but not over \$8,900	\$231.49 plus 5.04% of amount over \$6,500
Over \$8,900	\$352.45 plus 5.54% of amount over \$8,900

f. For an individual who is not a resident of this state for the entire year, or for a nonresident estate or trust, the tax is equal to the tax otherwise computed under this subsection multiplied by a fraction in which:

- (1) The numerator is the federal adjusted gross income allocable and apportionable to this state; and
- (2) The denominator is the federal adjusted gross income from all sources reduced by the net income from the amounts specified in subdivisions a and b of subsection 2.

In the case of married individuals filing a joint return, if one spouse is a resident of this state for the entire year and the other spouse is a nonresident for part or all of the tax year, the tax on the joint return must be computed under this subdivision.

g. For taxable years beginning after December 31, 2001, the tax commissioner shall prescribe new rate schedules that apply in lieu of the schedules set forth in subdivisions a through e. The new schedules must be determined by increasing the minimum and maximum dollar amounts for each income bracket for which a tax is imposed by the cost-of-living adjustment for the taxable year as determined by the secretary of the United States treasury for purposes of section 1(f) of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1954, as amended. For this purpose, the rate applicable to each income bracket may not be changed, and the manner of applying the cost-of-living adjustment must be the same as that used for adjusting the income brackets for federal income tax purposes.

h. The tax commissioner shall prescribe an optional simplified method of computing tax under this section that may be used by an individual taxpayer who is not entitled to claim an adjustment under subsection 2 or credit against income tax liability under subsection 7.

2. For purposes of this section, "North Dakota taxable income" means the federal taxable income of an individual, estate, or trust as computed under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, adjusted as follows:

- a. Reduced by interest income from obligations of the United States and income exempt from state income tax under federal statute or United States or North Dakota constitutional provisions.
- b. Reduced by the portion of a distribution from a qualified investment fund described in section 57-38-01 which is attributable to investments by the qualified investment fund in obligations of the United States, obligations of North Dakota or its political subdivisions, and any other obligation the interest from which is exempt from state income tax

under federal statute or United States or North Dakota constitutional provisions.

- c. Reduced by the amount equal to the earnings that are passed through to a taxpayer in connection with an allocation and apportionment to North Dakota under chapter 57-35.3.
- d. Reduced by thirty percent of the excess of the taxpayer's net long-term capital gain for the taxable year over the net short-term capital loss for that year, as computed for purposes of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The adjustment provided by this subdivision is allowed only to the extent the net long-term capital gain is allocated to this state.
- e. Increased by the amount of a lump sum distribution for which income averaging was elected under section 402 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 [26 U.S.C. 402], as amended. This adjustment does not apply if the taxpayer received the lump sum distribution while a nonresident of this state and the distribution is exempt from taxation by this state under federal law.
- f. Increased by an amount equal to the losses that are passed through to a taxpayer in connection with an allocation and apportionment to North Dakota under chapter 57-35.3.
- g. Reduced by the amount received by the taxpayer as payment for services performed when mobilized under title 10 United States Code federal service as a member of the national guard or reserve member of the armed forces of the United States. This subdivision does not apply to federal service while attending annual training, basic military training, or professional military education.
- h. Reduced by income from a new and expanding business exempt from state income tax under section 40-57.1-04.
- i. Reduced by interest and income from bonds issued under chapter 11-37.
- j. Reduced by up to ten thousand dollars of qualified expenses that are related to a donation by a taxpayer or a taxpayer's dependent, while living, of one or more human organs to another human being for human organ transplantation. A taxpayer may claim the reduction in this subdivision only once for each instance of organ donation during the taxable year in which the human organ donation and the human organ transplantation occurs but if qualified expenses are incurred in more than one taxable year, the reduction for those expenses must be claimed in the year in which the expenses are incurred. For purposes of this subdivision:
  - (1) "Human organ transplantation" means the medical procedure by which transfer of a human organ is made from the body of one person to the body of another person.
  - (2) "Organ" means all or part of an individual's liver, pancreas, kidney, intestine, lung, or bone marrow.
  - (3) "Qualified expenses" means lost wages not compensated by sick pay and unreimbursed medical expenses as defined for federal income tax purposes, to the extent not deducted in computing federal taxable income, whether or not the taxpayer itemizes federal income tax deductions.
- k. Increased by the amount of the contribution upon which the credit under section 57-38-01.21 is computed, but only to the extent that the contribution reduced federal taxable income.
- l. Reduced by the amount of any payment received by a veteran or beneficiary of a veteran under section 37-28-03 or 37-28-04.

- m. Reduced by the amount received by a taxpayer that was paid by an employer under paragraph 4 of subdivision a of subsection 2 of section 57-38-01.25 to hire the taxpayer for a hard-to-fill position under section 57-38-01.25, but only to the extent the amount received by the taxpayer is included in federal taxable income. The reduction applies only if the employer is entitled to the credit under section 57-38-01.25. The taxpayer must attach a statement from the employer in which the employer certifies that the employer is entitled to the credit under section 57-38-01.25 and which specifically identified the type of payment and the amount of the exemption under this section.
  - n. Reduced by the amount up to a maximum of five thousand dollars, or ten thousand dollars if a joint return is filed, for contributions made under a higher education savings plan administered by the Bank of North Dakota, pursuant to section 6-09-38.
  - o. Reduced by the amount of income of a taxpayer, who resides within the boundaries of any reservation in this state and who is an enrolled member of a federally recognized Indian tribe, from activities or sources within the boundaries of any reservation in this state.
- 3. Married individuals filing a joint federal income tax return shall file a joint state income tax return if the return is filed under this section. If separate federal income tax returns are filed, one spouse's state income tax return may be filed under this section and the other spouse's income tax return may be filed under the other provisions of this chapter.
- 4.
  - a. A resident individual, estate, or trust is entitled to a credit against the tax imposed under this section for the amount of income tax paid by the taxpayer for the taxable year by another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia on income derived from sources in those jurisdictions that is also subject to tax under this section.
  - b. For an individual, estate, or trust that is a resident of this state for the entire taxable year, the credit allowed under this subsection may not exceed an amount equal to the tax imposed under this section multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction divided by federal adjusted gross income less the amounts under subdivisions a and b of subsection 2.
  - c. For an individual, estate, or trust that is a resident of this state for only part of the taxable year, the credit allowed under this subsection may not exceed the lesser of the following:
    - (1) The tax imposed under this chapter multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction received while a resident of this state divided by federal adjusted gross income derived from North Dakota sources less the amounts under subdivisions a and b of subsection 2.
    - (2) The tax paid to the other jurisdiction multiplied by a ratio equal to federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other jurisdiction received while a resident of this state divided by federal adjusted gross income derived from sources in the other states.
  - d. The tax commissioner may require written proof of the tax paid to another state. The required proof must be provided in a form and manner as determined by the tax commissioner.
- 5. Individuals, estates, or trusts that file an amended federal income tax return changing their federal taxable income figure for a year for which an election to file state income tax returns has been made under this section shall file an amended state income tax return to reflect the changes on the federal income tax return.

6. The tax commissioner may prescribe procedures and guidelines to prevent requiring income that had been previously taxed under this chapter from becoming taxed again because of the provisions of this section and may prescribe procedures and guidelines to prevent any income from becoming exempt from taxation because of the provisions of this section if it would otherwise have been subject to taxation under the provisions of this chapter.
7. A taxpayer filing a return under this section is entitled to the following tax credits:
  - a. Family care tax credit under section 57-38-01.20.
  - b. Renaissance zone tax credits under sections 40-63-04, 40-63-06, and 40-63-07.
  - c. Agricultural business investment tax credit under section 57-38.6-03.
  - d. Seed capital investment tax credit under section 57-38.5-03.
  - e. Planned gift tax credit under section 57-38-01.21.
  - f. Biodiesel fuel tax credits under sections 57-38-01.22 and 57-38-01.23.
  - g. Internship employment tax credit under section 57-38-01.24.
  - h. Workforce recruitment credit under section 57-38-01.25.
  - i. Angel fund investment tax credit under section 57-38-01.26.
  - j. Microbusiness tax credit under section 57-38-01.27.
  - k. Marriage penalty credit under section 57-38-01.28.
  - l. Homestead income tax credit under section 57-38-01.29.
  - m. Commercial property income tax credit under section 57-38-01.30.
  - n. Research and experimental expenditures under section 57-38-30.5.
8. A taxpayer filing a return under this section is entitled to the exemption provided under section 40-63-04.
9.
  - a. If an individual taxpayer engaged in a farming business elects to average farm income under section 1301 of the Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 1301], the taxpayer may elect to compute tax under this subsection. If an election to compute tax under this subsection is made, the tax imposed by subsection 1 for the taxable year must be equal to the sum of the following:
    - (1) The tax computed under subsection 1 on North Dakota taxable income reduced by elected farm income.
    - (2) The increase in tax imposed by subsection 1 which would result if North Dakota taxable income for each of the three prior taxable years were increased by an amount equal to one-third of the elected farm income. However, if other provisions of this chapter other than this section were used to compute the tax for any of the three prior years, the same provisions in effect for that prior tax year must be used to compute the increase in tax under this paragraph. For purposes of applying this paragraph to taxable years beginning before January 1, 2001, the increase in tax must be determined by recomputing the tax in the manner prescribed by the tax commissioner.
  - b. For purposes of this subsection, "elected farm income" means that portion of North Dakota taxable income for the taxable year which is elected farm income as defined in section 1301 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 [26 U.S.C. 1301], as amended, reduced by the portion of an exclusion claimed under subdivision d of



subsection 2 that is attributable to a net long-term capital gain included in elected farm income.

- c. The reduction in North Dakota taxable income under this subsection must be taken into account for purposes of making an election under this subsection for any subsequent taxable year.
  - d. The tax commissioner may prescribe rules, procedures, or guidelines necessary to administer this subsection.
10. The tax commissioner may prescribe tax tables, to be used in computing the tax according to subsection 1, if the amounts of the tax tables are based on the tax rates set forth in subsection 1. If prescribed by the tax commissioner, the tables must be followed by every individual, estate, or trust determining a tax under this section.

**SECTION 27. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-30.5 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-30.5. Income tax credit for research and experimental expenditures.**

A taxpayer is allowed a credit against the tax imposed under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3 for conducting qualified research in this state.

- 1. The amount of the credit for taxpayers that earned or claimed a credit under this section in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2007, is calculated as follows:
  - a. For the first taxable year beginning after December 31, 2006, the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to seven and one-half percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
  - b. For the second taxable year beginning after December 31, 2006, the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to eleven percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
  - c. For the third taxable year beginning after December 31, 2006, the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to fourteen and one-half percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
  - d. For the fourth through the tenth taxable years beginning after December 31, 2006, the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to eighteen percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
  - e. For the eleventh taxable year beginning after December 31, 2006, and for each subsequent taxable year in which the taxpayer conducts qualified research in this state, the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to eight percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
  - f. The maximum annual credit a taxpayer may obtain under this section is two million dollars. Any credit amount earned in the taxable year in

excess of two million dollars may not be carried back or forward as provided in subsection 7.

2. For taxpayers that have not earned or claimed a credit under this section in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2007, and which begin conducting qualified research in North Dakota in any of the first four taxable years beginning after December 31, 2006, the amount of the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to twenty percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
  - a. This rate applies through the tenth taxable year beginning after December 31, 2006.
  - b. For the eleventh taxable year beginning after December 31, 2006, and for each subsequent taxable year in which the taxpayer conducts qualified research in this state, the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to eight percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
3. For taxpayers that have not earned or claimed a credit under this section in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2007, and which begin conducting qualified research in North Dakota in any taxable year following the fourth taxable year beginning after December 31, 2006, the amount of the credit is equal to twenty-five percent of the first one hundred thousand dollars of the qualified research expenses for the taxable year in excess of the base period research expenses and equal to eight percent of all qualified research expenses for the taxable year more than one hundred thousand dollars in excess of the base period research expenses.
4. For purposes of this section:
  - a. "Base period research expenses" means base period research expenses as defined in section 41(c) of the Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 41(c)], except it does not include research conducted outside the state of North Dakota.
  - b. "Director" means the director of the department of commerce division of economic development and finance.
  - c. "Primary sector business" means a qualified business that through the employment of knowledge or labor adds value to a product, process, or service.
  - d. "Qualified research" means qualified research as defined in section 41(d) of the Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 41(d)], except it does not include research conducted outside the state of North Dakota.
  - e. "Qualified research and development company" means a taxpayer that is a primary sector business with annual gross revenues of less than seven hundred fifty thousand dollars and which has not conducted new research and development in North Dakota.
  - f. "Qualified research expenses" means qualified research expenses as defined in section 41(b) of the Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 41(b)], except it does not include expenses incurred for basic research conducted outside the state of North Dakota.
5. The credit allowed under this section for the taxable year may not exceed the liability for tax under this chapter.
6. In the case of a taxpayer that is a partner in a partnership or a member in a limited liability company, the credit allowed for the taxable year may not exceed an amount separately computed with respect to the taxpayer's

interest in the trade, business, or entity equal to the amount of tax attributable to that portion of the taxpayer's taxable income which is allocable or apportionable to the taxpayer's interest in the trade, business, or entity.

7. Except as provided in subsection 1, if the amount of the credit determined under this section for any taxable year exceeds the limitation under subsection 5, the excess may be used as a research credit carryback to each of the three preceding taxable years and a research credit carryover to each of the fifteen succeeding taxable years. The entire amount of the excess unused credit for the taxable year must be carried first to the earliest of the taxable years to which the credit may be carried and then to each successive year to which the credit may be carried and the amount of the unused credit which may be added under this subsection may not exceed the taxpayer's liability for tax less the research credit for the taxable year.
8. A taxpayer that is certified as a qualified research and development company by the director may elect to sell, transfer, or assign all or part of the unused tax credit earned under this section. The director shall certify whether a taxpayer that has requested to become a qualified research and development company meets the requirements of subsection 4. The director shall establish the necessary forms and procedures for certifying qualifying research and development companies. The director shall issue a certification letter to the taxpayer and the tax commissioner. A tax credit can be sold, transferred, or assigned subject to the following:
  - a. A taxpayer's total credit assignment under this section may not exceed one hundred thousand dollars over any combination of taxable years.
  - b. If the taxpayer elects to assign or transfer an excess credit under this subsection, the tax credit transferor and the tax credit purchaser jointly shall file with the tax commissioner a copy of the purchase agreement and a statement containing the names, addresses, and taxpayer identification numbers of the parties to the transfer, the amount of the credit being transferred, the gross proceeds received by the transferor, and the taxable year or years for which the credit may be claimed. The taxpayer and the purchaser also shall file a document allowing the tax commissioner to disclose tax information to either party for the purpose of verifying the correctness of the transferred tax credit. The purchase agreement, supporting statement, and waiver must be filed within thirty days after the date the purchase agreement is fully executed.
  - c. The purchaser of the tax credit shall claim the credit beginning with the taxable year in which the credit purchase agreement was fully executed by the parties. A purchaser of a tax credit under this section has only such rights to claim and use the credit under the terms that would have applied to the tax credit transferor, except the credit purchaser may not carry back the credit as otherwise provided in this section. This subsection does not limit the ability of the tax credit purchaser to reduce the tax liability of the purchaser, regardless of the actual tax liability of the tax credit transferor.
  - d. The original purchaser of the tax credit may not sell, assign, or otherwise transfer the credit purchased under this section.
  - e. If the amount of the credit available under this section is changed as a result of an amended return filed by the transferor, or as the result of an audit conducted by the internal revenue service or the tax commissioner, the transferor shall report to the purchaser the adjusted credit amount within thirty days of the amended return or within thirty days of the final determination made by the internal revenue service or the tax commissioner. The tax credit purchaser shall file amended returns reporting the additional tax due or claiming a refund as provided in section 57-38-38 or 57-38-40, and the tax commissioner may audit these returns and assess or issue refunds, even though other time periods prescribed in these sections may have expired for the purchaser.

- f. Gross proceeds received by the tax credit transferor must be assigned to North Dakota. The amount assigned under this subsection cannot be reduced by the taxpayer's income apportioned to North Dakota or any North Dakota net operating loss of the taxpayer.
  - g. The tax commissioner has four years after the date of the credit assignment to audit the returns of the credit transferor and the purchaser to verify the correctness of the amount of the transferred credit and if necessary assess the credit purchaser if additional tax is found due. This subdivision does not limit or restrict any other time period prescribed in this chapter for the assessment of tax.
  - h. The tax commissioner may adopt rules to permit verification of the validity and timeliness of the transferred tax credit.
9. If a taxpayer acquires or disposes of the major portion of a trade or business or the major portion of a separate unit of a trade or business in a transaction with another taxpayer, the taxpayer's qualified research expenses and base period must be adjusted in the manner provided by section 41(f)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code [26 U.S.C. 41(f)(3)].
  10. If a taxpayer entitled to the credit provided by this section is a member of a group of corporations filing a North Dakota consolidated tax return using the combined reporting method, the credit may be claimed against the aggregate North Dakota tax liability of all the corporations included in the North Dakota consolidated return. This section does not apply to tax credits received or purchased under subsection 8.
  11. An individual, estate, or trust that purchases a credit under this section is entitled to claim the credit against state income tax liability under section ~~57-38-29~~ or 57-38-30.3.
  12. A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited partnership, limited liability company, or any other passthrough entity entitled to the credit under this section must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of calculating the credit. The amount of the allowable credit must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The total credit determined at the entity level must be passed through to the partners, shareholders, or members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough entity. An individual taxpayer may take the credit passed through under this subsection against the individual's state income tax liability under ~~sections 57-38-29 and 57-38-30~~ section 57-38-30.3.

**SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.** Subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 57-38-40 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- b. An individual who filed a return of income as a resident of this state and is assessed tax by another state or territory of the United States or the District of Columbia on that income after the time for filing a claim has expired under this section is entitled to a credit or refund for the amount of tax paid to the other jurisdiction, not including penalty or interest, as provided under subsection 2 ~~or 6 of section 57-38-04~~ 1 or ~~subsection 4 of section 57-38-30.3~~, notwithstanding the time limitations of this section. The claim for the credit or refund under this subdivision must be submitted to the commissioner within one year from the date the taxes were paid to the other jurisdiction. The taxpayer must submit sufficient proof to show entitlement to a credit or refund under this subdivision.

**SECTION 29. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38.5-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38.5-03. Seed capital investment tax credit.** If a taxpayer makes a qualified investment in a qualified business, the taxpayer is entitled to a credit against state income tax liability under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30, or 57-38-30.3.

1. The amount of the credit to which a taxpayer is entitled is forty-five percent of the amount invested by the taxpayer in qualified businesses during the taxable year.

2. The maximum annual credit a taxpayer may claim under this section is not more than one hundred twelve thousand five hundred dollars. This subsection may not be interpreted to limit additional investment by a taxpayer for which that taxpayer is not applying for a credit.
3. Any amount of credit under subsection 1 not allowed because of the limitation in subsection 2 may be carried forward for up to four taxable years after the taxable year in which the investment was made.
4. A passthrough entity that invests in a qualified business must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of the investment limitations in this section and the amount of the credit allowed with respect to a passthrough entity's investment in a qualified business must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the total credit determined at the passthrough entity level must be allowed to the members in proportion to their respective interests in the passthrough entity.
5. An investment made in a qualified business from the assets of a retirement plan is deemed to be the retirement plan participant's investment for the purpose of this chapter if a separate account is maintained for the plan participant and the participant directly controls where the account assets are invested.
6. The investment must be made on or after the certification effective date and must be at risk in the business to be eligible for the tax credit under this section. An investment for which a credit is received under this section must remain in the business for at least three years. Investments placed in escrow do not qualify for the credit.
7. The entire amount of an investment for which a credit is claimed under this section must be expended by the qualified business for plant, equipment, research and development, marketing and sales activity, or working capital for the qualified business.
8. A taxpayer who owns a controlling interest in the qualified business or who receives more than fifty percent of the taxpayer's gross annual income from the qualified business is not entitled to a credit under this section. A member of the immediate family of a taxpayer disqualified by this subsection is not entitled to the credit under this section. For purposes of this subsection, "immediate family" means the taxpayer's spouse, parent, sibling, or child or the spouse of any such person.
9. The tax commissioner may disallow any credit otherwise allowed under this section if any representation by a business in the application for certification as a qualified business proves to be false or if the taxpayer or qualified business fails to satisfy any conditions under this section or any conditions consistent with this section otherwise determined by the tax commissioner. The commissioner has four years after the due date of the return or after the return was filed, whichever period expires later, to audit the credit and assess additional tax that may be found due to failure to comply with the provisions of this chapter. The amount of any credit disallowed by the tax commissioner that reduced the taxpayer's income tax liability for any or all applicable tax years, plus penalty and interest as provided under section 57-38-45, must be paid by the taxpayer.
10. An angel fund that invests in a qualified business must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of the investment limitations in this section. The amount of the credit allowed with respect to an angel fund's investment in a qualified business must be determined at the angel fund level. The amount of the total credit determined at the angel fund level must be allowed to the investors in the angel fund in proportion to the investor's respective interests in the fund. An angel fund that is subject to the tax imposed under chapter 57-38 is not eligible for the investment tax credit under this chapter.

**SECTION 30. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38.6-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38.6-03. Agricultural business investment tax credit.** If a taxpayer makes a qualified investment in a qualified business, the taxpayer is entitled to a credit against state income tax liability as determined under section ~~57-38-29~~, 57-38-30; or 57-38-30.3.

1. The amount of the credit to which a taxpayer is entitled is thirty percent of the amount invested by the taxpayer in qualified businesses during the taxable year.
2. The maximum annual credit a taxpayer may obtain under this section is fifty thousand dollars and no taxpayer may obtain more than two hundred fifty thousand dollars in credits under this section over any combination of taxable years. This subsection may not be interpreted to limit additional investment by a taxpayer for which that taxpayer is not applying for a credit.
3. The credit under this section may not exceed the liability for tax under chapter 57-38. If the amount of credit under this section exceeds the liability for tax, the excess may be carried forward for up to ten taxable years after the taxable year in which the investment was made.
4. A partnership, subchapter S corporation, limited liability company that for tax purposes is treated like a partnership, or any other passthrough entity that invests in a qualified business must be considered to be the taxpayer for purposes of the investment limitations in this section and, except for the tax liability limitation under subsection 2, the amount of the credit allowed with respect to the passthrough entity's investment in a qualified business must be determined at the passthrough entity level. The amount of the total credit determined at the passthrough entity level must be allowed to the passthrough entity's owners, in proportion to their respective ownership interests in the passthrough entity.
5. An investment made in a qualified business from the assets of a retirement plan is deemed to be the retirement plan participant's investment for the purposes of this chapter if a separate account is maintained for the plan participant and the participant directly controls where the account assets are invested.
6. The investment must be made on or after the certification effective date and must be at risk in the business to be eligible for the tax credit under this section. A qualified investment must be in the form of a purchase of ownership interests or the right to receive payment of dividends from the business. An investment for which a credit is received under this section must remain in the business for at least three years. An investment placed in escrow does not qualify for the credit.
7. The entire amount of an investment for which a credit is claimed under this section must be expended by the qualified business for plant, equipment, research and development, marketing and sales activity, or working capital for the qualified business. Real property that qualifies as an investment must be used in, and be an integral part of, the qualified business's North Dakota business operations.
8. If the investment is a contribution of real property:
  - a. The value of the contribution may not exceed the appraised value as established by a licensed or certified appraiser licensed or certified under the requirements of sections 43-23.3-04, 43-23.3-04.1, 43-23.3-05, 43-23.3-06, 43-23.3-07, 43-23.3-08, 43-23.3-09, 43-23.3-10, 43-23.3-11, and 43-23.3-12.
  - b. The value of the contribution must be approved by the governing body of the qualified business applying the valuation standards set forth in subsection 3 of section 10-19.1-63.
  - c. The qualified business receiving the contribution of real property shall provide to the tax commissioner a copy of the appraised valuation, a copy of the governing body's resolution approving the value of the contribution, and a copy of the statement of full consideration within

thirty days after the instrument transferring title to the real property is recorded with the register of deeds as provided in chapter 47-19.

- d. A taxpayer making a contribution of real property is entitled to the tax credit in the taxable year in which the instrument transferring title to the real property is recorded with the register of deeds as provided in chapter 47-19.
9. The tax commissioner may disallow any credit otherwise allowed under this section if any representation by a business in the application for certification as a qualified business proves to be false or if the taxpayer or qualified business fails to satisfy any conditions under this section or any conditions consistent with this section otherwise determined by the tax commissioner. The amount of any credit disallowed by the tax commissioner that reduced the taxpayer's income tax liability for any or all applicable tax years, plus penalty and interest provided under section 57-38-45, must be paid by the taxpayer.

**SECTION 31. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 3 of section 57-51-15 of the North Dakota Century Code as amended by House Bill No. 1304, as approved by the sixty-first legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. The amount to which each county is entitled under subsection 2 must be allocated within the county so the first ~~four~~ five million ~~six~~ three hundred fifty thousand dollars is allocated under subsection 4 for each fiscal year and any amount received by a county exceeding ~~four~~ five million ~~six~~ three hundred fifty thousand dollars is credited by the county treasurer to the county infrastructure fund and allocated under subsection 5.

**SECTION 32. REPEAL.** Sections 57-38-01.2, 57-38-01.18, 57-38-02, 57-38-06.1, 57-38-29, 57-38-29.2, 57-38-30.4, 57-38-67, 57-38-68, 57-38-69, and 57-38-70 of the North Dakota Century Code are repealed.

**SECTION 33. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY.** During the 2009-10 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying corporate income taxes, with emphasis on the Uniform Division of Income Tax Act and the apportionment formula applied to multistate corporations doing business in North Dakota and the impact of how other states have adjusted apportionment factors under the Act. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-second legislative assembly.

**SECTION 34. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY.** During the 2009-10 interim, the legislative council shall consider studying the feasibility and desirability of providing a homestead credit for all North Dakota residential property owners and occupants. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-second legislative assembly.

**SECTION 35. EFFECTIVE DATE.** This Act is effective for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2008, except section 31 of this Act, which is effective for taxable events occurring after June 30, 2009."

Renumber accordingly

Reengrossed HB 1324 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. BELTER MOVED** that the conference committee report on Reengrossed HB 1324 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Reengrossed HB 1324 was placed on the Eleventh order.

#### **SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1324:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 6-09.8-01, subsection 4 of section 10-33-124, subsection 5 of section 11-37-08, sections 27-17-06 and 37-28-07, subsections 1 and 3 of section 40-63-04, section 40-63-06, subsection 4 of section 40-63-07, subsections 1 and 2 of section 57-38-01.7, subsections 1 and 4 of section 57-38-01.8, sections 57-38-01.14, 57-38-01.16, and 57-38-01.17, subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.20, subsections 2 and 4 of section 57-38-01.21, sections 57-38-01.22, 57-38-01.23, 57-38-01.24, 57-38-01.25, and 57-38-01.26, subsection 6 of

section 57-38-01.27, subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.29, subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.30, section 57-38-04, subsection 2 of section 57-38-08.1, sections 57-38-30.3 and 57-38-30.5, subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 57-38-40, sections 57-38.5-03 and 57-38.6-03, and subsection 3 of section 57-51-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to elimination of the optional long-form individual, estate, and trust income tax return and allocation of oil and gas gross production tax revenues to political subdivisions; to repeal sections 57-38-01.2, 57-38-01.18, 57-38-02, 57-38-06.1, 57-38-29, 57-38-29.2, 57-38-30.4, 57-38-67, 57-38-68, 57-38-69, and 57-38-70 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to elimination of the optional long-form individual, estate, and trust income tax return; to provide for legislative council studies; and to provide an effective date.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 61 YEAS, 31 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Belter; Berg; Boehning; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; DeKrey; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Hofstad; Holman; Johnson, D.; Karls; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Mueller; Nathe; Nelson; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Rust; Schatz; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Uglem; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Wieland; Williams; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Amerman; Boe; Boucher; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Froelich; Heller; Hunsakor; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Kasper; Keiser; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Meyer, S.; Mock; Myxter; Nottestad; Onstad; Ruby; Schmidt; Thoreson; Thorpe; Vig; Weiler; Weisz; Winrich; Wolf

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich

Reengrossed HB 1324 passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

**SB 2008:** Your conference committee (Sens. Krebsbach, Bowman, Seymour and Reps. Dosch, Berg, Glassheim) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ page 1247, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2008 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 1247 of the Senate Journal and page 1179 of the House Journal and that Senate Bill No. 2008 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 12, replace "747,117" with "635,817" and replace "4,873,525" with "4,762,225"

Page 1, line 15, replace "1,020,366" with "909,066" and replace "6,197,788" with "6,086,488"

Renumber accordingly

#### STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98027.0102 FN 2

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

SB 2008 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. DOSCH MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2008 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2008, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

#### SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

**SB 2008:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the department of financial institutions.



**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich

SB 2008, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2038, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Flakoll, G. Lee, Bakke and Reps. Skarphol, R. Kelsch, Williams) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1350-1351, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2038 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1350 and 1351 of the Senate Journal and pages 1413 and 1414 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2038 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 5, remove "to the legislative council" and remove the second "a"

Page 1, line 6, replace "study" with "studies"

Page 12, line 16, replace the colon with "the"

Page 12, line 17, remove "a. The" and replace the semicolon with "and the"

Page 12, line 18, remove "b. The" and replace the semicolon with a period

Page 12, remove lines 19 and 20

Page 15, after line 15, insert:

**"SECTION 8. STATE BOARD OF HIGHER EDUCATION - REPORTS TO SIXTY-SECOND LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY.** Each institution under the control of the state board of higher education shall report to the appropriations committees of the sixty-second legislative assembly regarding:

1. A comparison of the budgeted amounts to actual expenditures by major expenditure type for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.
2. A comparison of the budgeted amounts to actual expenditures by major expenditure type through the most recent month available at the time the report is presented to the appropriations committees.

**SECTION 9. LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL STUDY - HIGHER EDUCATION.**

1. During the 2009-10 interim, the legislative council chairman shall appoint an interim higher education committee to study issues affecting higher education.
2. The interim committee shall hold at least six education summit meetings to discuss topics that may include:
  - a. Alternative uses of institutions and changes to institutional missions;
  - b. Issues affecting two-year campuses;

- c. Tuition affordability, including a review of tuition reciprocity agreements;
  - d. Accessibility of higher education;
  - e. Workforce needs;
  - f. Contributions to economic development;
  - g. Utilization and capacity of higher education institution facilities;
  - h. Quality of education being delivered; and
  - i. Revenue-neutral policies that would aid in the reduction of student loan debt.
3. The chairman of the interim higher education committee may invite summit topic experts, representatives of the North Dakota university system, the private sector, and students to participate in the summit meetings to provide information to the committee as determined necessary to assist the committee in conducting its study.
  4. The legislative council shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-second legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2038 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. SKARPHOL MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2038 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2038, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

#### **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2038:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 15-10-12, 54-44.1-04, 54-44.1-06, and 54-44.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the appropriation of higher education institutions' special revenue funds; budget requests and block grant appropriations for the North Dakota university system; cancellation of unexpended appropriations of the North Dakota university system; to provide for a report; to provide for legislative council studies of higher education; to provide legislative intent for higher education accountability measures; and to provide an effective date.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 87 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Delmore; Dosch; Drovda; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunsakor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigasaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**NAYS:** Damschen; DeKrey; Delzer; Ruby; Wrangham

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich

Engrossed SB 2038, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2178:** Your conference committee (Sens. Lyson, Nething, Fiebiger and Reps. Wieland, Nelson, Kerzman) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ page 1168, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2178 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 1168 of the Senate Journal and pages 1093 and 1094 of the House Journal and that Senate Bill No. 2178 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, replace "department of corrections and rehabilitation" with "office of management and budget"

Page 1, line 6, replace "\$500,000" with "\$375,000"

Page 1, line 7, replace "department of corrections and rehabilitation" with "office of management and budget"

Page 1, line 9, replace "department of corrections and rehabilitation" with "office of management and budget"

Page 1, line 10, after "basis" insert "on August first of each year of the 2009-11 biennium"

Page 1, line 11, replace "12,263" with "9,198"

Page 1, line 12, replace "28,203" with "21,151"

Page 1, line 13, replace "17,956" with "13,467"

Page 1, line 14, replace "14,620" with "10,965"

Page 1, line 15, replace "17,373" with "13,031"

Page 1, line 16, replace "33,665" with "25,248"

Page 1, line 17, replace "27,505" with "20,628"

Page 1, line 18, replace "19,080" with "14,310"

Page 1, line 19, replace "21,938" with "16,453"

Page 1, line 20, replace "13,459" with "10,095"

Page 1, line 21, replace "15,913" with "11,934"

Page 1, line 22, replace "10,981" with "8,237"

Page 1, line 23, replace "17,044" with "12,783"

Page 1, line 24, replace "250,000" with "187,500"

Renumber accordingly

SB 2178 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. WIELAND MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2178 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2178, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2178:** A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation to the office of management and budget for community service supervision grants.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, and has committee recommendation of DO PASS, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Belter; Berg; Boe; Boehning; Boucher; Brandenburg; Carlson; Clark; Conklin; Conrad; Dahl; Damschen; DeKrey; Delmore; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Ekstrom; Frantsvog; Froelich; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Griffin; Gruchalla; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Kaldor; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsch, R.; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kerzman; Kilichowski; Kingsbury; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kroeber; Martinson; Meier, L.; Metcalf; Meyer, S.; Mock; Mueller; Myxter; Nathe; Nelson; Nottestad; Onstad; Pietsch; Pinkerton; Pollert; Porter; Potter; Ruby; Rust; Schatz; Schmidt; Schneider; Skarphol; Sukut; Svedjan; Thoreson; Thorpe; Uglem; Vig; Vigesaa; Wald; Wall; Weiler; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Winrich; Wolf; Wrangham; Zaiser; Speaker Monson

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Bellew; Kempenich

SB 2178, as amended, passed and the title was agreed to.

\*\*\*\*\*

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

**HB 1020:** Reps. Skarphol; Wald; Williams

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2005, SB 2013, SB 2022, SB 2023, SB 2064, SB 2198, SB 2225, SB 2248, SB 2266.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2012, SB 2267, SB 2371, SB 2373, SB 2391.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: SB 2005, SB 2012, SB 2013, SB 2022, SB 2023, SB 2064, SB 2198, SB 2225, SB 2248, SB 2266, SB 2267, SB 2371, SB 2373, SB 2391.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1324.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1009.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2008, SB 2038, SB 2178.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: HB 1006, HB 1057, HB 1360, HB 1368.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1007, HB 1019, HB 1090, HB 1216, HB 1305, HB 1385, HB 1399, HB 1412, HB 1449.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: HB 1007, HB 1019, HB 1090, HB 1305, HB 1385, HB 1399, HB 1412, HB 1449.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report, subsequently passed, and the emergency clause carried: HB 1010, HB 1018, HB 1554.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2024, SB 2162, SB 2277.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (FRAN A. GRONBERG, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1002, HB 1005, HB 1509, HB 1540.

**MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

**MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the House be on the Fourth, Fifth, Seventh, and Thirteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Friday, May 1, 2009, which motion prevailed.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2024:** Your conference committee (Sens. Fischer, Grindberg, Seymour and Reps. Berg, Kempenich, S. Meyer) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1339-1350, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2024 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1339-1350 of the Senate Journal and pages 1402-1413 of the House Journal and that Senate Bill No. 2024 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, after "commission" insert "; to create and enact two new sections to chapter 53-06.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the regulation of live racing and pari-mutuel wagering; to amend and reenact sections 53-06.2-02, 53-06.2-03, 53-06.2-04, 53-06.2-05, 53-06.2-10, 53-06.2-10.1, 53-06.2-11, 53-06.2-12, 53-06.2-13, 53-06.2-14, 53-06.2-15, and 53-06.2-16 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the regulation of live racing and pari-mutuel wagering; to provide for a report to the legislative council; to provide for transition; and to provide an effective date"

Page 1, line 11, replace "\$35,286" with "(\$82,290)" and replace "442,576" with "325,000"

Page 1, line 13, replace "291,984" with "174,408" and replace "412,576" with "295,000"

Page 1, after line 14, insert:

**"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-02. Racing commission - Members - Appointment - Term - Qualifications - Compensation.**

1. A North Dakota racing commission is established ~~consisting in the office of the agriculture commissioner.~~ The commission consists of the chairman and four other members appointed by the ~~governor~~ agriculture commissioner. One of the members must be appointed from a list of four nominees, one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the American quarter horse racing association, one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the United States trotting association, one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the ~~international Arabian paint~~ horse association, and one of whom is nominated by the state chapter or affiliate of the North Dakota thoroughbred association. The members serve five-year terms and until a successor is appointed and qualified. A member appointed to fill a vacancy arising from other than the natural expiration of a term serves for the unexpired portion of the term and may be reappointed. The terms of the commissioners must be staggered so that one term expires each July first. At the expiration of the five-year term of each incumbent member of the commission, the ~~governor~~ agriculture commissioner shall appoint a new member to the commission.
2. ~~A person~~ An individual is ineligible for appointment to the commission if that ~~person~~ individual has not been a resident of this state for at least two years before the date of appointment. ~~A person~~ An individual is also ineligible if that ~~person~~ individual is not of such character and reputation as to promote public confidence in the administration of racing in this state. ~~A person~~ An individual who has a financial interest in racing cannot be a member of the commission ~~and cannot be employed by the commission without full disclosure of the financial interest to the agriculture commissioner, the attorney general, and the commission.~~ Failure to maintain compliance with this subsection is grounds for removal from the commission ~~or from employment with the commission.~~ For purposes of this section, ~~a person~~ an individual has a financial interest in racing if that ~~person~~ individual has an ownership interest in horses running at live or simulcast meets conducted or shown in this state subject to this chapter or

rules of the ~~commission~~ agriculture commissioner, is required to be licensed under this chapter or the rules of the ~~commission~~ agriculture commissioner or attorney general, or who derives any direct financial benefit from racing, individually or by or through an entity or other person, as regulated by this chapter or the rules of the ~~commission~~ agriculture commissioner or attorney general.

3. Commission members are entitled to ~~seventy five dollars per day for the same~~ compensation; and mileage and expense reimbursement as ~~allowed to other state employees~~ provided for members of committees of the legislative council under section 54-35-10.

**SECTION 3. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-03. Director of racing - Appointment - Qualifications - Salary - Duties - Other personnel.**

1. The ~~commission shall~~ agriculture commissioner may appoint a director of racing. The ~~commission shall~~ agriculture commissioner may establish the director's qualifications and salary.
2. The director shall devote such time to the duties of the office as the ~~commission~~ agriculture commissioner may prescribe. The director ~~is the executive officer of the commission and shall enforce the rules and orders of the commission. The director shall perform other duties the~~ ~~commission~~ agriculture commissioner prescribes.
3. The director may employ other ~~persons~~ individuals as authorized by the ~~commission~~ agriculture commissioner.

**SECTION 4. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-04. Duties of commission and attorney general.**

1. The commission shall:
4. a. Provide for racing ~~under the certificate system.~~
2. b. Set racing dates.
3. c. Adopt rules for effectively preventing the use of any unauthorized substance, compound items, or combinations of any medicine, narcotic, stimulant, depressant, or anesthetic which could alter the normal performance of a racehorse, ~~unless specifically authorized by the commission.~~
4. ~~Supervise and check the making of pari-mutuel pools, pari-mutuel machines, and equipment at all races held under the certificate system.~~
5. d. Adopt rules governing, restricting, or regulating bids on licensees' concessions and leases on equipment.
6. e. Consider all proposed extensions, additions, or improvements to the buildings, stables, or tracks on property owned or leased by a licensee.
7. f. Exclude from racetracks ~~or simulcast pari-mutuel wagering facilities~~ any person who violates any rule ~~of the commission~~ adopted to implement this chapter or any law.
8. g. Determine the cost of inspections performed under subsection 3 of section 53-06.2-05 and require the licensee to pay that cost.
9. h. Report biennially to the legislative council regarding the operation of ~~the commission~~ racing under this chapter.
40. i. Provide notice to the North Dakota horsemen's council of meetings held by the commission and permit the North Dakota horsemen's

council to participate in the meetings through placement of items on the agenda.

44. j. Complete, distribute, and post on the commission's web site the minutes of each commission meeting within thirty days of that meeting or before the next meeting of the commission, whichever occurs first.

2. The attorney general shall:

- a. Provide for pari-mutuel wagering on racing, simulcast, and account wagering.
- b. Supervise and check the making of pari-mutuel pools, pari-mutuel machines, and equipment at all races held under the certificate system.
- c. Exclude from simulcast or account wagering facilities any person who violates any rule adopted to implement this chapter or any law.

**SECTION 5.** A new section to chapter 53-06.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Powers of commission.** The commission may:

1. Compel the production of all documents showing the receipts and disbursements of any licensee and determine the manner in which the financial records are to be kept.
2. Investigate the operations of any licensee and enter any vehicle or place of business, residence, storage, or racing of any licensee on the grounds of a licensed association to determine whether there has been compliance with the provisions of this chapter and rules adopted under this chapter and to discover and seize any evidence of noncompliance.
3. License all participants in racing and require and obtain information the commission determines necessary from license applicants. The commission may obtain a statewide and nationwide criminal history record check from the bureau of criminal investigation for the purpose of determining suitability or fitness for a license. The nationwide check must be conducted in the manner provided in section 12-60-24. All costs associated with obtaining a background check are the responsibility of the applicant for a license.
4. Receive moneys from the North Dakota horse racing foundation for deposit in the purse fund, the breeders' fund, or the racing promotion fund in accordance with subsection 6 of section 53-06.2-11.
5. Adopt rules to implement the laws concerning racing and the administration of racing.

**SECTION 6. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-05. Powers of ~~commission~~ attorney general.** The ~~commission~~ attorney general may:

1. Compel the production of all documents showing the receipts and disbursements of any licensee and determine the manner in which such financial records are to be kept.
2. Investigate the operations of any licensee and enter any vehicle or place of business, residence, storage, or racing of any licensee on the grounds of a licensed association to determine whether there has been compliance with the provisions of this chapter and rules adopted under this chapter, and to discover and seize any evidence of noncompliance.
3. ~~Request appropriate state officials to perform inspections necessary for the health and safety of spectators, employees, participants, and horses that are lawfully on a racetrack.~~

4. ~~License all participants in the racing and simulcast pari-mutuel wagering industry and require and obtain information the commission deems attorney general determines necessary from license applicants. Licensure of service providers, totalizator companies, site operators, and organizations applying to conduct or conducting pari-mutuel wagering must be approved by the attorney general. The attorney general may not grant a license denied by the commission. The commission may obtain a statewide and nationwide criminal history record check from the bureau of criminal investigation for the purpose of determining suitability or fitness for a license. The nationwide check must be conducted in the manner provided in section 12-60-24. All costs associated with obtaining a background check are the responsibility of the applicant for a license.~~
5. ~~Receive moneys from the North Dakota horse racing foundation for deposit in the purse fund, breeders' fund, or racing promotion fund in accordance with subsection 6 of section 53-06.2-11.~~
6. 4. Adopt additional rules for the administration, implementation, and regulation of pari-mutuel wagering activities conducted pursuant to this chapter. ~~The commission attorney general shall deposit any fees collected under authority of this subsection in the racing commission attorney general's operating fund. Subject to legislative appropriation, the commission attorney general may spend the fees for operating costs of the commission under this chapter.~~

**SECTION 7.** A new section to chapter 53-06.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**License and fees.**

1. Each license issued to conduct pari-mutuel wagering must describe the place, track, or racecourse at which the pari-mutuel wagering is to be conducted. Pari-mutuel wagering authorized under this chapter may be held during the hours approved by the attorney general and within the hours permitted by state law.
2. The attorney general may charge a license fee to conduct pari-mutuel wagering.
3. Each applicant for a license to conduct pari-mutuel wagering shall give bond payable to this state with good security as approved by the attorney general. The bond must be in the amount the attorney general determines will adequately protect the amount normally due and owing to this state.
4. The attorney general may grant licenses to service providers, totalizator companies, site operators, other organizations conducting pari-mutuel wagering, employees of service providers, totalizator companies, site operators, and other organizations conducting pari-mutuel wagering, and other persons as determined by the attorney general.
5. The attorney general may establish the period of time for which licenses issued under this chapter are valid.
6. Subject to legislative appropriation, the attorney general may spend the fees for operating costs of the attorney general.

**SECTION 8. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-10. Certificate system - Rules.** The certificate system allows a licensee to receive money from any ~~person~~ individual present at a live horse race, simulcast horse race, ~~or simulcast dog race, or account wagering facility~~ who desires to bet on any entry in that race. ~~A person~~ An individual betting on an entry to win acquires an interest in the total money bet on all entries in the race, in proportion to the amount of money bet by that ~~person~~ individual, under rules adopted by the ~~commission~~ attorney general. The licensee shall receive the bets and for each bet shall issue a certificate to the bettor on which is at least shown the number of the race, the amount bet, and the number or name of the entry selected by the bettor. The ~~commission~~ attorney general may adopt rules for place, show, quinella, combination, or other types of betting usually connected with racing.



**SECTION 9. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-10.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-10.1. Simulcast wagering.** In addition to racing under the certificate system, as authorized by this chapter, and conducted upon the premises of a racetrack, simulcast pari-mutuel wagering may be conducted in accordance with this chapter or rules adopted by the ~~commission under attorney general to implement this chapter in accordance with chapter 28-32.~~ Any organization qualified under section 53-06.2-06 ~~to conduct racing~~ may make written application to the ~~commission~~ attorney general for the conduct of simulcast pari-mutuel wagering on races held at licensed racetracks inside the state or racetracks outside the state, or both. ~~Licensure of service~~ Service providers, totalizator companies, site operators, or organizations applying to conduct or conducting simulcast or account wagering must ~~be approved~~ obtain a license approved by the attorney general. ~~The attorney general may not grant a license denied by the commission.~~ Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the ~~commission~~ attorney general may authorize any licensee to participate in interstate or international combined wagering pools with one or more other racing jurisdictions. Anytime that a licensee participates in an interstate or international combined pool, the licensee, as prescribed by the ~~commission~~ attorney general, may adopt the take-out of the host jurisdiction or facility. The ~~commission~~ attorney general may permit a licensee to use one or more of its races or simulcast programs for an interstate or international combined wagering pool at locations outside its jurisdiction and may allow pari-mutuel pools in other states to be combined with pari-mutuel pools in its jurisdiction for the purpose of establishing an interstate or international combined wagering pool. The participation by a licensee in a combined interstate or international wagering pool does not cause that licensee to be considered to be doing business in any jurisdiction other than the jurisdiction in which the licensee is physically located. Pari-mutuel taxes or commissions may not be imposed on any amounts wagered in an interstate or international combined wagering pool other than amounts wagered within this jurisdiction. The certificate system also permits pari-mutuel wagering to be conducted through account wagering. As used in this section, "account wagering" means a form of pari-mutuel wagering in which an individual deposits money in an account and uses the account balance to pay for pari-mutuel wagers. An account wager made on an account established in this state may only be made through the licensed simulcast service provider approved by the attorney general ~~and authorized by the commission to operate the simulcast pari-mutuel wagering system under the certificate system.~~ ~~The attorney general may not grant a license denied by the commission.~~ An account wager may be made in person, by direct telephone communication, or through other electronic communication in accordance with rules adopted by the ~~commission~~ attorney general. Breakage for interstate or international combined wagering pools must be calculated in accordance with the statutes or rules of the host jurisdiction and must be distributed among the participating jurisdictions in a manner agreed to among the jurisdictions.

**SECTION 10. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-11. Bet payoff formulas - Uses by licensee of funds in excess of expenses - Payment to general fund.**

1. For wagering on live horse racing and simulcast wagering:
  - a. In win, place, and show pari-mutuel pools, the licensee may deduct no more than twenty percent of the amount wagered. Of the amount wagered, the licensee shall pay:
    - (1) ~~Two~~ One-half of one percent to the state treasurer to be deposited in the general fund.
    - (2) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the breeders' fund.
    - (3) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the purse fund.
    - (4) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the racing promotion fund.
  - b. In daily double, quinella, exacta, trifecta, or other combination pari-mutuel pools, the licensee may deduct no more than twenty-five

percent of the amount wagered. Of the amount wagered, the licensee shall pay:

- (1) ~~Two and one-half~~ One-half of one percent to the state treasurer to be deposited in the general fund.
- (2) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the breeders' fund.
- (3) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the purse fund.
- (4) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the racing promotion fund.

2. For account wagering:

- a. In win, place, and show pari-mutuel pools, the licensee may deduct no more than twenty percent of the amount wagered.

~~(1) Before eleven million dollars is wagered in all pari-mutuel wagering in each biennium, of the amount wagered by account wagering in win, place, and show pari-mutuel pools, the licensee shall pay:~~

- ~~(a) Two percent to the state treasurer to be deposited in the general fund.~~
- ~~(b) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the breeders' fund.~~
- ~~(c) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the purse fund.~~
- ~~(d) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the racing promotion fund.~~

~~(2) After eleven million dollars is wagered in all pari-mutuel wagering in each biennium, of~~ Of the amount wagered by account wagering in win, place, and show pari-mutuel pools, the licensee shall pay:

- ~~(a)~~ (1) One-sixteenth of one percent to the state treasurer to be deposited in the general fund.
- ~~(b)~~ (2) One-sixteenth of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the breeders' fund.
- ~~(c)~~ (3) One-sixteenth of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the purse fund.
- ~~(d)~~ (4) One-sixteenth of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the racing promotion fund.

- b. ~~In daily double, quinella, exacta, trifecta, or other combination pari-mutuel pools, the licensee may deduct no more than twenty-five percent of the amount wagered.~~

~~(1) Before eleven million dollars is wagered in each biennium, of the amount wagered by account wagering in daily double, quinella, exacta, trifecta, or other combination pari-mutuel pools, the licensee shall pay:~~

- ~~(a) Two and one-half percent to the state treasurer to be deposited in the general fund.~~
- ~~(b) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the breeders' fund.~~

- ~~(c) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the purse fund.~~
- ~~(d) One-half of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the racing promotion fund.~~
- ~~(2) After eleven million dollars is wagered in all pari-mutuel wagering in each biennium, of~~ Of the amount wagered by account wagering in daily double, quinella, exacta, trifecta, or other combination pari-mutuel pools, the licensee shall pay:
  - ~~(a)~~ (1) One-sixteenth of one percent to the state treasurer to be deposited in the general fund.
  - ~~(b)~~ (2) One-sixteenth of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the breeders' fund.
  - ~~(c)~~ (3) One-sixteenth of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the purse fund.
  - ~~(d)~~ (4) One-sixteenth of one percent to the commission to be deposited in the racing promotion fund.
- 3. For all pari-mutuel wagering the licensee shall pay to the commission the amount due for all unclaimed tickets and all breakage of which twenty percent is to be deposited in the racing promotion fund, thirty percent is to be deposited in the breeders' fund, and fifty percent is to be deposited in the purse fund.
- 4. The licensee conducting wagering on live racing, simulcast wagering, or account wagering shall retain all other money in the pari-mutuel pool and pay it to bettors holding winning tickets as provided by rules adopted by the commission.
- 5. A licensee may not use any of the portion deducted for expenses under subsections 1 and 2 for expenses not directly incurred by the licensee in conducting pari-mutuel racing under the certificate system. After paying qualifying expenses, the licensee shall use the remainder of the amount so withheld only for eligible uses allowed to charitable gambling organizations under section 53-06.1-11.1.
- 6. The commission shall deposit the moneys received pursuant to subsections 1, 2, and 3 and from the North Dakota horse racing foundation pursuant to subsection 5 of section 53-06.2-05 in the breeders' fund, the purse fund, and the racing promotion fund. Moneys, and any earnings on the moneys, in the breeders' fund, purse fund, and racing promotion fund are appropriated to the commission on a continuing basis to carry out the purposes of those funds under this chapter and must be administered and disbursed in accordance with rules adopted by the commission. The commission may not transfer money among the funds. The commission shall distribute awards and payment supplements from the breeders' fund in the same calendar year the money was earned by the recipient. The commission shall distribute payments awarded to qualified owners and breeders from the breeders' fund without requiring owners and breeders to apply for the payments. The commission, upon approval of the emergency commission, may receive no more than twenty-five percent of the racing promotion fund for the payment of the commission's operating expenses.

**SECTION 11. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-12 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-12. Audits and investigations by state auditor.** On request of the commission or attorney general, the state auditor shall conduct audits and investigate the operations of any licensee. The commission or attorney general shall reimburse the state auditor for all services rendered.

**SECTION 12. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-13. Duty of attorney general to participate in certain hearings and to conduct investigations – ~~Employment of private counsel by commission.~~**

1. The attorney general shall represent the state in all hearings ~~before the commission~~ and shall prosecute all criminal proceedings arising from violations of this chapter. The attorney general may require payment for any services rendered to the ~~racing~~ commission. Payment for the services must be deposited in the attorney general's operating fund. ~~The commission may employ private counsel for adoption of rules and to ensure that its hearings are conducted fairly. All hearings under this chapter must be conducted by the office of administrative hearings under chapter 28-32.~~
2. a. The attorney general may audit and investigate service providers, totalizator companies, site operators, or organizations applying to conduct or conducting pari-mutuel wagering. The attorney general may:
  - (1) a. Inspect all sites in which pari-mutuel wagering is conducted.
  - (2) b. Inspect all pari-mutuel wagering equipment and supplies.
  - (3) c. Seize, remove, or impound any pari-mutuel equipment, supplies, or books and records for the purpose of examination and inspection.
  - (4) d. Inspect, examine, photocopy, and audit all books and records.
- b. ~~The commission shall reimburse the attorney general for auditing and investigation. Payment for auditing and investigation must be deposited in the attorney general's operating fund.~~

**SECTION 13. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-14 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-14. Denial, suspension, and revocation of licenses - Reasons.** The commission or attorney general may deny, suspend, or revoke licenses ~~under the certificate system and privileges granted by it, and it may terminate racing privileges issued by each respective official~~ for just cause. Actions constituting just cause include:

1. Any action or attempted action by a person contrary to any law.
2. Corrupt practices, which include:
  - a. Prearranging or attempting to prearrange the order of finish of a race.
  - b. Failing to properly pay winnings to a bettor or to properly return change to a bettor purchasing a ticket.
  - c. Falsifying or manipulating the odds on any entrant in a race.
3. Any violation of the rules of racing adopted by the commission or attorney general under this chapter.
4. Willful falsification or misstatement of fact in an application for racing or pari-mutuel privileges.
5. Material false statement to a racing official, the attorney general, or to the commission.
6. Willful disobedience of ~~a commission~~ an order of the commission or attorney general or of a lawful order of a racing official other than a commission member.
7. Continued failure or inability to meet financial obligations ~~connected with racing meets.~~
8. Failure or inability to properly maintain a racetrack.

**SECTION 14. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-15. Revocation, suspension, fine - Procedure.** The commission or attorney general, on proof of violation by a licensee, its agents or employees, of this chapter or any rule adopted by the commission ~~may~~ or attorney general to implement this chapter, on reasonable notice to the licensee and after giving the licensee an opportunity to be heard, may fine the licensee or revoke or suspend the license. If the license is revoked, the licensee is not eligible to receive another license within twelve months from the date of revocation. Every decision or order of the commission or attorney general must be made in writing and filed ~~with the director~~ for preservation as a permanent record of the commission or attorney general. ~~The decision must be signed by the chairman, attested by the director, and dated.~~

**SECTION 15. AMENDMENT.** Section 53-06.2-16 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**53-06.2-16. Prohibited acts - Penalties.**

1. No person may conduct a pari-mutuel ~~horse-race~~ wagering or racing unless that person is licensed by the commission or attorney general. Violation of this subsection is a class A misdemeanor.
2. No person may prearrange or attempt to prearrange the order of finish of a race. Violation of this subsection is a class C felony.

**SECTION 16. REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL.** The racing commission, in its biennial report to the legislative council under section 53-06.2-04, shall include information and recommendations for legislation which address the issue of the liability of charitable organizations that receive and disburse moneys handled through account wagering.

**SECTION 17. TRANSITION.** Any member of the North Dakota racing commission who is a member of the commission as of June 30, 2011, and whose term expires after July 1, 2011, may serve the remainder of that member's unexpired term.

**SECTION 18. EFFECTIVE DATE.** Sections 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 of this Act become effective on July 1, 2011."

Renumber accordingly

**STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT - LC 98043.0113 FN 2**

A copy of the statement of purpose of amendment is on file in the Legislative Council Office.

SB 2024 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2162, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Dever, Erbele, Pomeroy and Reps. Weisz, Porter, Conrad) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments on SJ pages 1249-1250, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2162 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1249 and 1250 of the Senate Journal and pages 1251 and 1252 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2162 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "a new section to chapter 50-06 and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "criminal history record checks and to"

Page 1, line 3, after "reenact" insert "subdivision g of subsection 2 of section 12-60-24 and"

Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "criminal history record checks,"

Page 1, line 11, after the first semicolon insert "to provide a statement of legislative intent;" and after the second semicolon insert "to provide an appropriation;"

Page 1, after line 13, insert:

**"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT.** Subdivision g of subsection 2 of section 12-60-24 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

- g. ~~The department of human services for carecheck registrations under section 50-11.1-06.2 criminal history record checks authorized under section 2 of this Act.~~

**SECTION 2.** A new section to chapter 50-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Criminal history record checks.** The department may require criminal history record checks as the department determines appropriate for:

1. Employees of the department upon hiring;
2. Providers licensed by the department under chapter 50-12, as well as for any employees of those providers; and
3. Applicants for early childhood services licensure, nonlicensed holders of a self-declaration, and in-home providers under chapter 50-11.1. The department also may require criminal history record checks for new staff members of those applicants, providers of an applicant, and a provider if the provider is providing early childhood services within the provider's home."

Page 2, line 9, replace "two" with "three"

Page 9, line 12, after "neglect" insert ". The department may issue a provisional in-home provider registration document in accordance with the rules of the department"

Page 10, remove lines 28 through 31

Page 11, remove lines 1 through 7

Page 11, line 8, replace "3." with "2."

Page 11, after line 9, insert:

- "3. The department may issue a provisional self-declaration document in accordance with the rules of the department."

Page 11, line 27, replace "Applicants" with "Upon a determination by the department that a criminal history record check is appropriate, a provider holding or an applicant", replace the first "or" with an underscored comma, and after "self-declaration" insert an underscored comma

Page 11, line 28, after the second "as" insert "new"

Page 11, line 29, after "and" insert "new"

Page 12, line 20, overstrike "the applicant"

Page 13, line 2, replace the first "or" with an underscored comma and after "denial" insert ", or revocation"

Page 13, after line 3, insert:

- "9. Any individual who is providing early childhood services solely for the provider's own children, grandchildren, nieces, nephews, and cousins as a licensed provider, a nonlicensed holder of a self-declaration, or an in-home provider may not be required to submit to a criminal history record check authorized under section 2 of this Act."

Page 19, line 11, replace "7" with "9"

Page 23, after line 27, insert:

**"SECTION 28. LEGISLATIVE INTENT - FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT POSITIONS - BACKGROUND CHECKS.** It is the intent of the sixty-first legislative assembly that of the new 2.0 full-time equivalent positions authorized for the attorney general to assist with conducting background checks under this Act, the attorney

general may fill the positions only as necessary to meet workload demands for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011.

**SECTION 29. APPROPRIATION.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$210,856, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, and \$82,904 in special funds, to the attorney general for the purpose of conducting background checks under this Act, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2009, and ending June 30, 2011."

Page 23, line 29, replace "3" with "5"

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed SB 2162 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**FIRST READING OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

**SCR 4038:** A concurrent resolution to create and enact a new section to article X of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to the creation of a public health investment trust fund.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Constitutional Revision Committee**.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Vigesaa's motion.

**Buell J. Reich, Chief Clerk**

